
This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item No. AGENDA Page No

1.  MAYOR'S COMMUNICATIONS 

To receive any Mayoral communications 

2.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

4.  MINUTES 4 - 11

To authorise the signing of the minutes of the meetings of the Council 
held on 14th February 2018 and 28th February 2018. 

5.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 

To receive petitions and questions from members of the public, where 
these have been received in accordance with the Petitions Scheme 
and/or Council Procedure Rules. 

6.  NOTICES OF MOTION 

The Council is asked to consider the following Motion that has been 
submitted in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 - 

It will be moved by Councillor Dearnley and seconded by Councillor 
Stott that:

This Council notes the significant disruption often caused by third party 
organisations who carry out street works, digging up sections of the 

Meeting of:  Council
Date: Wednesday, 11th April, 2018
Time: 6.15 pm
Venue: Council Chamber - Rochdale Town Hall

Public Document Pack



highway or footpaths.  Whilst Local Authorities have some powers in 
relation to this type of activity and Rochdale Council endeavours to use 
the existing powers of the local authority to optimal benefit, we 
consider that the current powers are insufficient and should be 
extended so that all highways authorities are able to work more 
efficiently with cable and utility companies to better plan and 
programme street work activities, particularly around highway and 
footpath excavations; and that advance notice requirements are 
strengthened so that our communities have more time to prepare for 
any local disruption. 

This Council calls on the Chief Executive to contact the Secretary of 
State for Transport outlining our concerns and calling for a review of 
the statutory provisions for local authorities and third party 
organisations. 

7.  MEMBERS' QUARTERLY REPORTS 

To receive quarterly reports from Members of the Cabinet and Chairs 
of Overview and Scrutiny Committees and to permit questions from 
Members of the Council.  

(a)  The Leader of the Council and the Cabinet Member for Corporate 
and Resources

12 – 14

(b)  The Cabinet Member for Housing and Environment 15 - 19

(c)  The Cabinet Member for Regeneration 20 – 22

(d)  The Cabinet Member for Business, Skills and Employment 23 – 25

(e)  The Cabinet Member for Children's Services 26 – 28

(f)  The Cabinet Member for Adult Care 29 – 30

(g)  The Cabinet Member for Planning and Development 31 – 32

(h)  The Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods, Community and 
Culture

33 – 38

(i)  The Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing 39 – 41

(j)  The Chair of Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 42 – 43

(k)  The Chair of Communities, Regeneration and Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

44 – 45

(l)  The Chair of Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

46 – 47



8.  REPRESENTATIVES ON JOINT AUTHORITIES AND OUTSIDE 
BODIES 

To permit questions to representatives on any Joint Authority or 
Outside Body, where received.  

(a)  Report of the Representative to the Greater Manchester Waste 
Disposal Authority

48 - 49

(b)  Report of a Representative to Transport for Greater Manchester 50 - 52

9.  GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY 53 - 88

Minutes of the meetings of the Greater Manchester Combined 
Authority held 26th January 2018, 20th February 2018 and 23rd 
February 2018 

10.  VOTE OF THANKS 

To thank retiring Members for their service rendered.  

For more information about this meeting, please contact 
Peter Thompson
01706 924793
peter.thompson@Rochdale.Gov.UK



COUNCIL

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 14th February 2018

PRESENT:  The Mayor (Councillor Duckworth (in the Chair); Councillors 
Iftikhar Ahmed, Shakil Ahmed, Daalat Ali, Sultan Ali, Beswick, Cecile Biant, 
Surinder Biant, Blundell, Boriss, Brett, Burke, Butterworth, Clegg, Cocks, 
Davidson, Dearnley, Dutton, Neil Emmott, Susan Emmott, Emsley, Farnell, 
Furlong, Gartside, Hartley, Heakin, Holly, Hornby, Howard, Hussain, Joinson, 
Kelly, Malcolm, McCarthy, Meredith, Mir, Nickson, O‘Neill, O’Rourke, 
Paolucci-Escobar, Rashid, Rowbotham, Rush, Sheerin, Smith, Stott, Sullivan, 
Wazir, West, Donna Williams, Peter Williams, Zaheer and Zaman.

OFFICERS:  S. Rumbelow (Chief Executive), G. Hopper (Director of 
Children’s Services), J. Searle (Director of Economy), S. McIvor (Director of 
Joint Commissioning/DASS), V. Bradshaw (Chief finance Officer), D, Wilcock 
(Assistant Director – Legal, Governance and Human Resources), D. Bowler 
(Assistant Director – Place), E. Newsome (Head of Governance), D. Beck, 
M. Roberts (Neighbourhoods Directorate) and P. Thompson (Resources 
Directorate).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Approximately 20 members of the public.

APOLOGIES
46 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Ali Ahmed, Bell, 
Brosnan, Clegg, Martin, Robinson, Wardle and Winkler.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
47 RESOLVED:

That the following declarations of interest be noted:-

Councillor Sheerin declared a personal and prejudicial interest in minute 51, 
below – Nomination of Deputy Mayor 2018/19 and he left the room during 
consideration of the item.

MINUTES
48 RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the meetings of Council held 13th December 2017 be 
approved and signed as a correct record.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS
49 The Mayor noted the attendance of representatives of Rochdale’s 
Youth Council who had asked to address the Council on the matter of the 
Notice of Motion (agenda item 6(c)) regarding votes for 16 and 17 year olds. 
The Mayor asked Lewis Tweedale to address the Council and Councillor 
Heakin, Cabinet Member with responsibility for the Children’s Services 
Portfolio, responded. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



NOTICES OF MOTION
50
a) Greater Manchester Mayor’s Initiative: Walking and Cycling

It was Moved by Councillor Sullivan and seconded by Councillor Burke that:

“This Rochdale Borough Council strongly supports the Greater Manchester 
Mayor’s initiative to change the way we get around. By walking or cycling 
instead of driving for short journeys massive improvements to health and the 
economy could be achieved. 

This Council is therefore requested to instruct the Council’s Chief Executive 
and Highways Service to participate fully in moving this initiative forward.”  

On being put to the vote, the motion was declared to be carried and it was 
RESOLVED accordingly.

b) Minister for Older People

It was Moved by Councillor Sheerin and seconded by Councillor Wardle that:

“This Council notes that there is not currently a dedicated Minister covering 
the task of looking after issues relating to Older People.

This Council also notes that there is an aging population and increasing 
pensioner poverty. This affects large issues such as housing, health and 
wellbeing and loneliness.
 
This Council believes that this lack of a dedicated minister and the rise in 
these issues is a recipe for government inaction on matters that will potentially 
damage the county.

This Council resolves to ask the Chief Executive to write to the Prime Minister 
requesting the creation of a Minister for Older People.”

On being put to the vote, the motion was declared to be carried and it was 
RESOLVED accordingly.

c) Votes for 16 and 17 year olds

It was Moved by Councillor Martin and seconded by Councillor Donna 
Williams that:

“This Council wholeheartedly supports the Votes at 16 Campaign. 16 and 17 
year olds are knowledgeable and passionate about the world in which they 
live, and are as capable of engaging in the democratic system as any other 
citizen. 

Page 5



In Rochdale, we see numerous examples of the fantastic contributions our 
young people are making.  They demonstrate their engagement in societal 
issues each year when they cast their vote for the Youth Cabinet.  Last year 
alone we saw 10,997 votes cast and just under 10,000 votes cast for the 
Children’s Champion.  In Rochdale, our young people fully understand the 
democratic process and their role as citizens.

Over 1.5 million 16 and 17 year olds are currently denied the vote in the UK. 
The injustice of this denial is clear when you consider they can do the 
following: 
•           Give full consent to medical treatment 
•           Leave school and enter work or training 
•           Pay income tax and National Insurance 
•           Obtain tax credits and welfare benefits in their own right 
•           Get married or enter a civil partnership 
•           Change their name by deed poll 
•           Become a director of a company 
•           Become a member of a trade union or a co-operative society 
•           Join the armed forces 

This Council also notes the proposals by the Institute for Public Policy 
Research that to make the best of Votes at 16, that the first vote cast should 
be compulsory and that political education should be strengthened in schools 
as part of citizenship courses.

This Council places on record its full support for the Votes at 16 Campaign 
and requests that the Chief Executive writes to the Parliamentary Under-
Secretary (Department for Education) to express Rochdale Councils position 
on this matter.”

On being put to the vote, the motion was declared to be carried and it was 
RESOLVED accordingly.

NOMINATION OF DEPUTY MAYOR 2018/19
51 The Council received a report inviting consideration of the nomination 
of the Deputy Mayor for 2018/19, presenting an established method for 
appointing to this position and advising of a resulting nomination from the 
Labour Group.

RESOLVED:
That Councillor Sheerin be nominated as Deputy Mayor for the 2018/19 
Municipal Year, and the nomination go forward to the next Annual Meeting of 
the Council.

CALENDAR OF COUNCIL MEETINGS
52 The Council considered the proposed Council Calendar of Meetings for 
the 2018/19 Municipal Year.

Page 6



RESOLVED:
(1) the Calendar of Meetings for the 2018/19 Municipal Year, as submitted, be 
approved;
(2) the Chief Executive be authorised to amend the Calendar as necessary in 
consultation with the appropriate Committee Chairs or the Leader.

MEMBERS' QUARTERLY REPORTS
53 Members presented their Quarterly Reports responding to questions 
and remarks from Members of the Council:-

 The Leader of the Council and the Cabinet Member for Corporate and 
Resources

 The Cabinet Member for Housing and Environment 
 The Cabinet Member for Regeneration
 The Cabinet Member for Business, Skills and Employment
 The Deputy Leader and the Cabinet Member for Planning and 

Development
 The Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods, Community and Culture
 The Cabinet Member for Adult Care
 The Cabinet Member for Children’s Services
 The Deputy Leader and the Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing
 The Chair of Heywood Township Committee
 The Chair of Middleton Township Committee
 The Chair of Pennines Township Committee
 The Chair of Rochdale Township Committee
 The Chair of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
 The Chair of the Communities, Regeneration and Environment 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee
 The Chair of the Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
 Report of a Representative to Greater Manchester Waste Disposal 

Authority Transport for Greater Manchester
 Report of the Representative to Transport for Greater Manchester

RESOLVED:
That the reports be noted.

GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY
54 The Council considered the minutes of the meetings of the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority held on 24th November 2017 and 15th 
December 2017.

RESOLVED:
That the Minutes be noted.

Page 7



COUNCIL

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 28 February 2018

PRESENT:  Councillor Ian Duckworth (Chair); Councillors Iftikhar Ahmed, 
Sultan Ali, Bell, Beswick, Cecile Biant, Surinder Biant, Blundell, Boriss, Brett, 
Burke, Butterworth, Clegg, Cocks, Davidson, Dearnley, Dutton, Neil Emmott, 
Susan Emmott, Emsley, Farnell, Furlong, James Gartside, Hartley, Heakin, 
Holly, Hornby, Hussain, Joinson, Kelly, Malcolm, Martin, McCarthy, Meredith, 
Mir, O'Rourke, Paolucci-Escobar, Rush, Smith, Stott, Sullivan, Wardle, Wazir, 
West and Winkler.

OFFICERS:  S. Rumbelow (Chief Executive), G. Hopper (Director of 
Children’s Services), N. Thornton (Director of Resources), V. Bradshaw (Chief 
Finance Officer), J. Murphy (Deputy Chief Finance Officer), E. Newsome 
(Head of Governance), S. Smith (Finance Manager), Jennifer Francis 
(Communications Officer), R. Hall and N. Suleman (Facilities Management) 
and M. Garraway (Governance & Committees).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  One member of public.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillors Ahmed, Shakil Ahmed, Daalat Ali, 
Brosnan, Howard, Nickson, O'Neill, Rashid, Robinson, Rowbotham, Sheerin, 
Donna Williams, Peter Williams, Zaheer and Zaman

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
55 Councillors Clegg and Sultan Ali declared disclosable pecuniary 
interests in agenda item 2 - 2018/19 Discretionary Business Rate Relief 
Policy, in so far as holding positions of responsibility in potentially affected 
organisations and left the Council Chamber during consideration of the item.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS
56 There were no submitted questions or petitions.

2018/19 DISCRETIONARY BUSINESS RATE RELIEF POLICY
57 The Council considered a recommendation from Cabinet on the 
Discretionary Business Rate Relief Policy which required an amendment for 
2018/19 following a change announced in the 2017 Autumn Budget. 
 
RESOLVED:
1.    That the extension of Pub Relief from 1st April 2018, noting that the 
extension for a further financial year to 31st March 2019 be approved.
2.    The introduction of a maximum rateable value of £51,000, above which 
relief will not be granted to charitable and not-for-profit organisations be 
approved.

Page 8



BUDGET 2018/19 - 2020/21 - LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2003 
REQUIREMENTS
58 The Council considered the report of the Chief Finance Officer relating 
to the requirements under the Local Government Act 2003. The Council was 
required to consider the opinion of the Chief Finance Officer regarding the 
robustness of the budget as proposed and the adequacy of general balances 
and reserves prior to the setting of the budget.
 
It was the opinion of the Chief Finance Officer that the proposed budget was 
robust and that the proposed level of general balances and reserves were 
adequate. An option to maintain or reduce the level of balances or reserves 
had not been recommended by the Chief Finance Officer given the risk 
assessment presented in the report, and this position had been endorsed by 
the Cabinet when agreeing that General Balances for 2018/19 be set at £17M.
 
RESOLVED:
That the approach to general balances included in the report, including the 
setting of general balances at £17m for 2017/18, be endorsed.

BUDGET 2018/19 - 2020/21
59 The Council considered a report outlining the recommendations of the 
Cabinet, as moved by Councillor Brett and seconded by Councillor Emsley, in 
respect of the Revenue Budget, Capital Budget, Council Tax, Pay Policy, 
Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy, Treasury Management Strategy 
and Medium Term Financial Strategy for 2018/19.

A submitted amendment to the motion was withdrawn by Councillor Kelly.

The Motion as moved and seconded was then voted upon by means of a 
recorded vote.

Voting for the motion: Councillors Iftikhar Ahmed, Sultan Ali, Bell, Beswick, 
Cecile Biant, Surinder Biant, Blundell, Boriss, Brett, Burke, Butterworth, Clegg, 
Cocks, Dearnley, Dutton, Neil Emmott, Susan Emmott, Emsley, Farnell, 
Furlong, Gartside, Hartley, Heakin, Holly, Hornby, Hussain, Joinson, Malcom, 
Martin, McCarthy, Meredith, Mir, O’Rourke, Paolucci-Escobar, Rush, Smith, 
Stott, Sullivan, Wardle, Wazir, West, Winkler.

Abstaining on the motion: Councillors Davidson, Duckworth and Kelly.

Accordingly, the motion was declared to be carried and it was RESOLVED 
that:
1. The revenue estimates for 2018/2019 be approved.
2. The level of Council Tax increase at 2.99% be approved.
3. The Council Tax Flexibility Offer and set a separate precept of 2% for 

Adult Social Care pressures be approved.
4. It be noted that, at its meeting on 13th December, Council calculated the 

amount of 53,537 as its council tax base for the year 2018/19 in 
accordance with Section 31B of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 
(“the Act”), as amended by the Localism Act 2011.

Page 9



5. The following amounts be calculated by the Council for the year 2018/19 in 
accordance with Sections 30 to 36 of the Act:-

a. £554,849,178.00 being the aggregate of the amounts which the 
Council estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(2) of the Act.

b. £473,396,259.00 being the aggregate of the amounts which the 
Council estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(3) of the Act.

c. £81,452,919.00 being the amount by which the aggregate under 
Section 31A(2) exceeds the aggregate under Section 31A(3), 
calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 31A(4) of the 
Act, as its council tax requirement for the year.

d. £1,521.43 being the amount calculated under Section 31A(4), 
divided by the Council Tax Base (53,537), in accordance with 
Section 31B of the Act, as the relevant basic amount of its Council 
Tax for the year, including 2% for Adult Social Care. The relevant 
basic amount being £96.99 for Adult Social Care and £1,424.44 for 
Other Council Expenditure.

A B C D E F G H
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Included in the Valuation 
Bands  for Adult Social 
Care

64.66 75.44 86.21 96.99 118.54 140.10 161.65 193.98

Included in the Valuation 
Bands for other Council 
expenditure

949.63 1,107.90 1,266.17 1,424.44 1,740.98 2,057.52 2,374.07 2,848.88

Total 1,014.29 1,183.34 1,352.38 1,521.43 1,859.52 2,197.62 2,535.72 3,042.86

Valuation Bands 

Being the amounts given by multiplying the amount calculated in 
accordance with Section 31B by the number which, in the proportion set 
out in Section 5(1) of the Act, is applicable to dwellings listed in a particular 
band divided by the number which in that proportion is applicable to 
dwellings listed in Valuation Band D, calculated by the Council, in 
accordance with Section 36(1) of the Act, as the amount to be taken into 
account for the year in respect of categories of dwellings listed in different 
Valuation Bands.

6. It be noted that for the year 2018/2019 the major precepting Authorities 
have stated the following amounts in precepts issued to the Council, in 
accordance with Section 40 of the Act, for each of the categories of 
dwellings shown below:-

A B C D E F G H
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Mayoral Police and Crime 
Commissioner Precept 116.20 135.57 154.93 174.30 213.03 251.77 290.50 348.60

Mayoral General Precept 
(including Fire Services) 45.29 52.84 60.39 67.95 83.05 98.15 113.24 135.9

Precepting Authority
Valuation Bands

Page 10



7. Having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at 
paragraphs 3(e) and 4 above, the Council, in accordance with Sections 30 
and 36 of the Act, hereby sets the aggregate amounts shown in the table 
below as the amounts of Council Tax for the year 2018/2019 for each part 
of its area and for each of the categories of dwellings.

A B C D E F G H
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

1,175.78 1,371.75 1,567.70 1,763.68 2,155.60 2,547.54 2,939.46 3,527.36

Valuation Bands

8. No discount be given in relation to the early payment of Council Tax bills 
for taxpayers paying the full 2018/2019 amount.

9. The decision regarding any changes to the final allocations for the 
Dedicated Schools Grant be delegated to the Director of Children’s 
Services and the Chief Finance Officer in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Children’s Services and the Cabinet Member for Corporate 
and Resources.

10.The potential call on reserves of £4.2m be noted
11.The progress of the Integration of Health and Social Care services as set 

out in the Budget Report. In particular, the operation of the Pooled Fund 
budget from 2018/19 for local authority and CCG services and the risks to 
the Council should the savings proposals not be achieved, be noted.

12.The contribution to the Integrated Health & Social Care Pooled Fund 
budget of £102.826m, be approved.

13.The Capital Programme be approved.
14.New spending proposal requiring additional revenue and capital resources 

should only be considered during the financial year, in extreme 
circumstances as determined by the Budget and Policy Framework. The 
proposals would need to be reported to the next available Council meeting 
in accordance with the Budget & Policy Framework.

15.Pay Policy Statement – Budget Council are requested to approve the Pay 
Policy outlined in the Budget Report to comply with the requirements of 
Section 6 of the Localism Act 2011.

16.The Treasury Management Strategy be approved.
17.The Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy be approved.
18.The Medium Term Financial Strategy be approved.

Page 11



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET MEMBER REPORT TO THE COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL & CABINET MEMBER FOR 
CORPORATE AND RESOURCES

 Wednesday, 11th April 2018

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest developments on 
various matters relating to the CORPORATE AND RESOURCES Portfolio

1. INTRODUCTION
Despite the recent appalling weather, the council’s work carries on. My service area has 
been a hive of activity; a snapshot of which is outlined below. 

But before I move the report, I wanted to acknowledge the dedication of our staff that 
battled through the snow and treacherous conditions to come into Riverside. It’s this type 
of continued loyalty which provides the backbone for us to support the public to the best 
of our abilities.

2. FINANCE SERVICES

2.1 FINANCE

a) Monitoring of the Current Year:  The financial position for the end of January 
monitoring reports was presented to Cabinet on the 27th March. The projected revenue 
position of £1.4m in year saving and the total capital re-phasing of £2.2m since 
December are noted in the report. The collection fund as at the same period is reporting 
a projected £2.9m surplus, £1.5m of this relating to the collection of Council Tax and is 
reflected in the budget for 2018/19.

b) Health and Social Care Integration:  The March Integrated Commissioning Board 
(ICB) considered the Shadow Pooled Budget for 2017/18. The end of January position 
for the Shadow Pooled Budget for 2017/18 reported a forecast overspend of £4.7m 
which will be mitigated through contingencies and reserves identified by the Clinical 
Commissioning Group and the Local Authority. Work is continuing on developing the 
Pooled Fund for 2018/19.

2.2 REVENUES AND BENEFITS 

a) 93.1% of council tax due in the year has been collected which is slightly ahead of this 
time last year; £3.3m of previous years arrears had also been collected. 

b) 94.7% of business rates due in the year has been collected which is the same as this 
time last year; £249k of previous years arrears had also been collected.   The Spring 
Budget Discretionary business rates relief of £259,000is fully allocated.

c) Waiting times for claims for Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support are currently at 
two and a half weeks. We have used all of our allocation of funding for Discretionary 
Housing Payments (£713,000 for 2017/18) and have made 1170 awards.

2.3 INTERNAL AUDIT 

Page 12

Agenda Item 7a



a) Counter Fraud: 

 203 fraud referrals were received with 82% resulting in positive outcomes;
 A further 14 sanctions have been achieved, consisting of 12 fines for fraud and 2 

formal cautions; and

b)  £45,340 has been identified in terms of additional savings and overpayments which will 
be recovered. The total amount for the full year exceeds £350,000

3 INFORMATION, CUSTOMERS & COMMNUNITIES

a) Customer Access
We are expanding our online offer through our award-winning website. We’ve recently 
introduced e-billing for Council Tax and Business Rates customers and I would 
encourage people to access this new service.

b) Public Service Reform
Our Integrated Place Teams in Kirkholt, College Bank and Lower Falinge are achieving 
excellent results in addressing high demand.  In College Bank and Lower Falinge, for 
every £1 of public funding invested there has been a cost benefit of £4.13 through our 
work in supporting families and individuals 

3.1 COMMUNICATIONS

a) Youth Service
The Youth Service featured on Granada Reports showing a powerful video on 
Islamophobia that has been made with young people in the borough.

b) Live Webcam
The live webcam which covers the falcons nest box in the town hall Clock Tower is being 
switched back on soon.

4 LEGAL

a) Travellers Injunction
Legal have supported our colleagues in the Neighbourhoods to obtain an interim 
travellers injunction from the High Court which is expected to reduce anti-social 
behaviour, fly tipping and associated public nuisance across the borough.

b) New Fire Station Museum
We have agreed a Memorandum of Understanding with the Greater Manchester Fire 
Service for the new Fire Station Museum in Rochdale 

5 HUMAN RESOURCES

a) Gender Pay Gap
As a public authority Rochdale Borough Council is required to publish gender pay gap 
information relating to our employees who are employed by us on the relevant snapshot 
date identified as 31st March 2017. A report was taken to Cabinet on 27th March 
reporting that our GPG is 4.08%. This is an encouraging result. Although as an Authority 
we have a gap we come favourably with comparable organisations and have a good 
platform on which to build

Page 13



b) Continuity of Service Protocol
Cabinet considered the adoption of the Greater Manchester Continuity of Service 
protocol between NHS organisations and Local Authorities within GM.  This is a 
significant step towards encouraging integrated working and helping recruit and retain 
key employees within the Health and Social Care sector within GM and is seen as 
breaking new ground in terms of HR practice.

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of the Council 
about these or any other matter.

Councillor Allen Brett
Leader of the Council and the Portfolio Holder for CORPORATE AND RESOURCES

Page 14



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET MEMBER REPORT TO THE COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT AND HOUSING TO 
THE MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY, 11th APRIL 2018

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest 
developments on various matters relating to the Environment and Housing 
Portfolio.

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT
Customer satisfaction relating to service delivery has improved this year, with 
corporate complaints down by -13.64% in comparison to 16/17, whilst compliments 
to the service have risen by 28% for the same period. 
EM has converted 57 full time agency positions to long term and permanent RBC 
contracts. The majority of these contracts have been filled by residents of the 
Borough. We have successfully supported 3 young people through an 
apprenticeship programme and supporting a further 6 in 18/19.
EM’s Landscape team have completed over 200 improvement schemes across the 
borough. 
Implemented weekend working across the Cemeteries to enhance standards and 
staff presence. 
Recycling 
Recycling for the year should finish above 49%,Recycling officers engaged with 
10,924 householders, we educated 3,749 individuals at community events, we 
delivered 6,241 educational leaflets & letters to householders, we carried out 435 
refuse Bin Audits, Recycling officers visited 4,104 households, the team delivered 
recycling lessons to 38 year 5 classes.
Public Realm
151 Fixed Penalty Notices issued, mainly littering, 15 convictions for environmental 
crimes, 16 paid cautions, 174 statutory notices served, 337 formal warnings issued, 
25 unlawful traveller encampments removed, the Team has introduced monthly 
“Gateway” inspections.
Operations
Clean and Green teams cleared an additional 2697 grot spot areas. Public Realm 
cleanliness standards have increased to 97.3%. Community groups are taking part 
in formally monitoring public realm standards, providing an independent overview of 
our cleanliness results.
Best performance yet in the North West in Bloom Awards.  Heywood, Pennines and 
Rochdale all pick up highest accolade of a gold award, while Middleton awarded 
silver on its very first year of entry, with 37 awards won across the borough.

PROPERTY, HIGHWAYS & FACILITIES MANAGEMENT
PROPERTY - Technical
Springhill Resource Centre; Work started on a 1.1million refurbishment, work to be 
completed end of 2018, Design and Project Management completed.
Two additional surveyors have now been trained up to complete Fire Risk 
Assessments generating an income for RBC
Commission for 20 school condition surveys. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7b



Managed Property Services
The team has delivered a reactive repair service to all the Council’s properties and 
schools. In addition to the reactive work. The teams has also provided many 
planned schemes such as:
Rochdale West Lodge – Making building water tight, Springfield Park Toilets 
Upgrade, Repairs to emergency lighting at N1R and Fixed Wiring Inspection. 
Home Improvement Agency - Assisting in minor adaptations, including ramps, 
Rebuild of the damaged stone wall at Balderstone Park. The team continues to 
support the use of apprentices and currently employs two apprentice electricians.
Capital Projects
The Schools Capital and AMG Maintenance Programme for 2017/18 have
been successfully delivered.  The additional place planning scheme at Whittaker 
Moss Primary School has been completed. Work to increase capacity at St. 
Andrew’s CE Primary School is on site. Work to extend facilities at Boarshaw 
Primary School is now on site, Design work for Woodland Primary is underway. 

HIGHWAYS
Capital Programme and Delivery
The South Heywood Junction 19 Link Road project has been granted conditional 
planning approval and detail design is ongoing.
The Highways capital programme including investment in carriageway resurfacing 
works, carriageway structural patching, drainage improvement programmes are 
ongoing. The 2018/19 & 2019/20 2-year forward capital works programme is 
approved.
Bridges, Structures & Asset Management
Design stage: Oldham Road Canal Bridge Strengthening, Ogden Lane Retaining 
Wall No.3 and Edenfield Road Retaining Wall Reconstruction. Procurement stage: 
Ashworth Road Landslide, Rochdale. On Site: Bolton Road Retaining Wall 
Refurbishment. Complete: Crossfield Cl Footbridge, Woodhouse La Retaining Wall. 
Repairs, Whitelees Rd Retaining Wall, Broad La retaining wall replacement.
Highways Maintenance
In partnership with BBLP We have Cleaned 44,000 gullies, attended to 2350 
reported blocked gullies, Undertaken or scheduled 13800 minor highway repairs 
including potholes, Inspected approx. 3150 utility companies excavations on our 
highway, received and responded to 1275 service requests from the public and 
over 500 from elected members, attended 451 out of hours emergencies & 845 
emergency road repairs, inspected 829km of highway for defects.
Winter Maintenance
This winter has been the most severe that we have experienced since 2011. There 
has been prolonged periods of extreme cold and adverse weather including heavy 
snow falls in December, January, February and March.
During these periods in all but the most extreme conditions the gritting network was 
maintained to allow safe passage.
Network Improvement, Developing and Flooding
The Lincoln close link road from Oldham Road to Rochdale Railway Station is 
currently on-site. Work has started in our capacity of monitoring the new highway 
works on the Rochdale Riverside development. We have met with local cyclists and 
representatives from the Mayor of Greater Manchester on Local Cycling and 
Walking Infrastructure Plans. Delivering the Cycle City Ambition Grant 2 funded 
schemes with TfGM.

Page 16



Network Management
The Team continues to process applications for activities on the highway in 
accordance with The GMRAPS, We continue to process temporary traffic 
regulation orders (road closures) to facilitate works, activities and public events on 
the highway
Car Parking
A new on street pay & display Traffic Regulation Order came into force on the 
01/03/18 requiring vehicles to display a ticket, even when parked for free.
Following the closure of the town centre car parks and the new TRO covering on 
street pay and display bays, the town centre enforcement beat has been amended. 
STREET LIGHTING
Continue to monitor the performance of EON so they provide a high quality service.  
We will be using LED lanterns that align with the PFI contract which will further 
reduce RBC energy consumption and CO 2 emissions., The routine maintenance 
for 2018 is currently 25 % complete and on schedule. EON has taken an average 
of 2.37 days to repair a street light, the average percentage of lights working was 
99.37 % for this period.
FACILITIES MANAGEMENT
Town Hall
The town Hall was voted the number 1 tourist attraction in Rochdale by Trip 
Advisor, taking over from Hollingworth Lake for the 1st time. The use of plastics at 
the Town Hall has ceased, and biodegradable products are used in their place.
The “Hogwarts Experience” held before Xmas was a fantastic success, with the 
event sold out on all 5 nights and for 2 matinees.
Facilities Management
The FM cleaning team at N1R have been shortlisted for a national award.
Mayoral 
Nazam Suleman attending the Apprentice of the Year event in London this month, 
returning with a finalist trophy – well done Naz. The Mayor has opened – The 
Medicine Tap (old post office), New Store on Queensway, Village medical Centre in 
Norden to name just a few! St Patrick’s Day Flag Raising, hosted by the Mayor of 
Rochdale refreshments and light entertainment followed. Mehran Khan who won 
the National Boys &Girls Club Super-Heavyweight Boxing Title joined the Mayor at 
the Town Hall for a Mayoral Commendation. 
STRATEGIC HOUSING
Discretionary Crisis Fund and Local Welfare Provision
The DCF to date has supported 792 vulnerable residents, with 4,580 individual 
items totalling £237,933. 11% of items awarded were for emergency items such as 
fuel vouchers, emergency clothing, travel etc. and, 89% were for awards to support 
resettlement (white goods and essential household items).
Universal Credit Data
Full Service Universal Credit is due to go live on May 16th this year. Seeing most 
benefit claimants being moved over to Universal Credit. We are working with the 
DWP to help raise awareness, and information sessions have started this week.
The total caseload of UC claims at the end of Fe 2018 was 3,906. The proportions 
of claimants are as follows;

 27% Middleton, 18% Heywood, 55% Rochdale
 28% aged 16 to 24, 62% aged 25 to 49, 10% aged 50 and over
 61% not in employment, 39% in employment.

Page 17



Housing Development 
The Strand – Completion is anticipated for May 2018. Willow Park – Keepmoat 
have made a provisional start on site. High level of interest in sales with six early 
bird reservations so far. Ramsey Terrace - Regenda are on site building 10 four-
bed and two three-bed family homes for affordable rent. Completion is anticipated 
for December 2018.
Empty Properties
43 long term empty properties have been brought back into use, 3 Empty Dwelling 
Management Order notices served, 1 interim EDMO granted and 1 final order 
made. 22 referrals to Repair and Lease schemes and 3 enquiries for a loan.
7 Properties brought back into use via the Repair and lease schemes. 2 Empty 
Property Loans have been approved.
Energy Efficiency
250 households provided with advice on energy and a further 400 to be visited, 
Warm Homes Funding for 40 first-time central heating systems.
Private Rented Sector
203 complaints received, a new procedure adopted which allows quicker service of 
enforcement notices, 3 vulnerable households provided with temporary heating 
over the cold period, One enforcement notice resulting in works being undertaken 
in default, 58 cases of protection from illegal eviction and harassment complaints 
dealt with. 
Partnership Enforcement 
The continuation of Operation Maverick utilising Controlling Migration Funding:
4 Out of Hours operations, 27 Multi-Agency premises visits - resulting in - 19 HMO 
Enforcement visits, 5 ASB/Nuisance Warnings, 10 Vulnerability Visits within private 
rented sector properties – (e.g. cuckoo cases. Pop up brothels, trafficking). 
Homelessness
The cold weather protocol was invoked and accommodated 5 rough sleepers.
The AGMA-wide homelessness working group is progressing. One of the current 
projects is the development of an AGMA-wide database of homeless cases.
A raising awareness event was held in January which was well attended, Front line 
staff have received training in readiness for the new responsibilities under the 
Homelessness Reduction Act that comes into force April.
Gypsies and Travellers
The council has been granted an interim borough-wide injunction to prevent 
unauthorised injunctions. The case identified 82 individual travellers and 314 sites, 
but all sites and all travellers are covered by the injunction. The injunction will be 
enforced 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, including the Bank Holidays. It will 
substantially shorten the time taken to move on unauthorised encampments. 

CORONERS HOSTED SERVICE
Plans continue to move the Coroner’s service to larger new accommodation that 
will incorporate the necessary court space appropriate for the service.  

REGISTRATION AND CELEBRANT SERVICES
Registration and Celebrant Services will be working with our Events Team and 
Town Hall staff for the Wedding Show on the 15th April.  This is a showcase event 
for the Town Hall and our Registrars in promoting weddings in Rochdale supported 
by local businesses.  Weddings are a significant source of income for RBC and 
these events celebrate the unique quality of the Town Hall and the high quality 

Page 18



service and facilities the Council offers to people wanting to marry. 

Councillor Neil Emmott
Portfolio Holder for Environment and Housing

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of 
the Council about these or any other matter relating to the Environment and 
Housing Portfolio

Page 19



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET MEMBER REPORT TO THE COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR REGENERATION TO THE 
MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY, 11th APRIL 2018

Thank you Mr Mayor for the opportunity to report to the council the latest developments on 
various matters relating to the Regeneration (including Strategic Projects) Portfolio.

ROCHDALE TOWN CENTRE

Rochdale Riverside (Genr8)
I am delighted to confirm that work to construct our Rochdale Riverside retail & leisure scheme 
is now underway.  This is a momentous achievement and a major milestone for our flagship 
development which will change the face of Rochdale town centre.  The contractors Willmott 
Dixon took possession of the site on 26th February and have been busy mobilising and 
preparing the site for the main construction phase.  The development, which will bring around 24 
new shops, restaurants and a six screen cinema to the town centre, is expected to be open in 
summer 2020.   
We will be working closely with Willmott Dixon to maximise the opportunities presented by this 
major development for local jobs, apprenticeships & training, and for local companies.  It is 
estimated that 250 operatives could be working on the site at peak times and the development is 
expected to create a number of apprenticeships.  Around 80 different companies are expected 
to be subcontracted to help deliver the scheme and Willmott Dixon is planning to subcontract 
more than £20m worth of work to companies with a base in the Greater Manchester area. As 
part of this, a ‘meet the buyer’ event to promote opportunities for local companies to get involved 
in the scheme was held in March.  
Whilst this is clearly great news, we recognise that the construction work will result in disruption 
to the roads and footpaths in the area.  We will continue to work closely with the contractor to 
ensure this is kept to a minimum and will be keeping local businesses, shoppers and visitors up 
to date through the usual channels.    
Finally, as I have reported previously, whilst M&S have stated that they no longer intend to 
occupy the scheme, as far as the developer and the Council are concerned they have a legally-
binding agreement to take space in the scheme and we expect M&S to fulfil their legal 
obligations.   

Rochdale Town Hall & Town Hall Square 
We submitted a revised HLF bid for the Town Hall restoration and adaptation in December 
2017.  A decision on the re-submitted bid is expected to be made in April 2018. We also have 
plans in the pipeline to improve the Town Hall Square, including public realm improvements and 
the lighting of key heritage buildings.   A landscape architect will be appointed in the near future 
to create some designs to transform Town Hall Square and better frame the Town Hall and the 
designs will be put out to public consultation.
 
Market 
The interim market is now well established at its temporary home on Baillie Street, Yorkshire 
Street and Lord Square, which has also recently been resurfaced in natural stone.  This 
temporary market is operating three days a week and will remain in place until the new market 
on The Butts is ready for occupation.    
The site of the new permanent market is in the heart of the historic town centre, next to the 
recently completed re-opened River Roch, with the capacity to accommodate around 25 to 30 
stalls.  The planning application for this new outdoor market, and the conversion of the former 
Santander building to create a small food hall, was approved in September.  The Santander 

Page 20

Agenda Item 7c



building is owned by the Council and the third phase of work which is the detailing and fit out of 
the property is now well under way.  

Fire Station Museum 
We are working closely with the Greater Manchester Fire Station Museum Trust to bring forward 
exciting proposals to transform the Fire Station Museum on Maclure Road. Under the plans, the 
ground floor of the former fire station building will be renovated to create a dedicated exhibition 
space for the museum’s many exhibits. The move would more than triple the museum’s current 
floorspace from 300 to over 1,000 square metres and enable its many exhibits to be showcased. 
A second stage Heritage Lottery Fund bid was submitted to the Heritage Lottery Fund in March 
2018 and a decision is expected in June.  The proposals, if agreed, will enable the museum to 
open four days a week, enabling them to triple their visitor number from just under 5,000 to 
15,000.  We have also started to review options for the use of the first floor of the building.  

Town Centre Business Rates & Independent Retail Business Support Scheme
The combination of our innovative Business Rates discount scheme and property renovation 
grants for independent town centre businesses have made a huge impact to our town centres.  
Since the launch of the business rates support scheme in Rochdale, Heywood and Middleton 
town centres in 2016, there has been a flow of new private sector investments into our towns.  A 
total of eleven new businesses who have been awarded business rates grants are now 
established across all three town centres.  
We are also continuing to provide extra support to new independent retailers by providing a 
grant of up to £5,000 for fit-out or shop front improvements for eligible retailers at 50% of the 
total costs of works.  Applications are being encouraged from businesses and individuals 
wishing to establish in our town centres.  To date six grants have been approved and other 
applications are currently being assessed.   This has all contributed towards a significant drop in 
vacancy levels in the area covered by the schemes which was 27% prior to the start of the 
scheme. This is now down to 11% in the core area with 23 new businesses having been brought 
in.  

BUSINESS PARKS 

Kingsway Business Park
The JD Sports extension has now been completed externally, with work now taking place on the 
internal fit out. This is due to complete in August 2018 and will bring the total floorspace within 
the building to over 2.5m sq ft, with a consequent increase in job numbers.
Work is due to commence in early April on the small unit scheme. This will provide 11 units 
ranging in size from 3,000 sq ft to 15,000 sq ft. These will be ready for occupation in early 2018, 
and marketing will commence over the summer.
JD Sports and ASDA / Wincanton have now confirmed that they will continue to fund the 
Kingsway link ‘dial-a-ride’ bus service for 2018/19. The bus link is vital in enabling residents to 
access the employment opportunities presented at Kingsway Business Park.
In February, officers of the Council, working with Rochdale Development Agency, Wilson 
Bowden Development and GM Police secured an interim injunction across Kingsway which will 
act as a deterrent to travellers setting up unauthorised encampments.              
 
Stakehill Industrial Estate
The injunction mentioned above applies to Stakehill Industrial Estate and will also act as a 
deterrent to travellers in this location as well. 
Tectonic 300, the former Tesco unit which has undergone refurbishment, has been put back on 
the market and a launch event is scheduled in the near future.  
Point 62, one of the two units formerly occupied by Aldi, has recently become fully occupied with 
the neighbouring unit undergoing fit out prior to occupancy in the forthcoming months.

Page 21



OTHER REGENERATION ACTIVITY 

M62 J19/South Heywood Area Wide Improvement Programme
At their March meeting, the Planning and Licensing Committee were minded to grant planning 
permission for the South Heywood development subject to the Secretary of State not wishing to 
intervene. This process is explained more fully in the Report of the Cabinet Member for Planning 
and Development. Should this application be granted, the development will deliver 1.5m sq ft of 
employment space which will create an estimated 2,800 new jobs targeted at local people, up to 
1000 new homes, a new primary school and a local retail centre. A key element of the 
development is the creation of a new link road between J19 of the M62 and the South Heywood 
Employment Area. This will enhance the economic competitiveness of existing businesses 
within South Heywood by reducing travel times for vehicles and will enable the development of 
sites capable of attracting large floorplate, inward investing, companies which currently cannot 
be accommodated anywhere else in the Borough. The scheme will also deliver over £1m of 
private sector investment in public transport.     

Councillor John Blundell
Portfolio Holder for Regeneration

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of the Council 
about these or any other matter relating to the Regeneration Portfolio

Page 22



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET MEMBER REPORT TO THE COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR BUSINESS, SKILLS AND EMPLOYMENT TO THE 
MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY, 11th APRIL 2018

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest developments on 
various matters relating to the Business, Skills and Employment Portfolio.

Business

The Business Growth Hub, in partnership with Rochdale Borough Council, has launched its 
new Start Smart programme. The programme is designed to support  residents who have 
recently started their own business or want to start their own business. Free support through 
workshops, events and one-to-one specialist advice will be available across the borough.  
Drop in sessions have started in Number 1 Riverside and will move around the borough very 
soon. Upto 100 local childminders will receive a short training session to help them manage 
their cashflow to meet new contracting arrangements in relation to the government's 30-hours 
funded childcare places for working parents of three- and four-year-olds.  This is part of a 
wider programme of support being developed by the Children’s Services Directorate. 

Rochdale Development Agency continues to provide comprehensive business support 
through a single point of contact for both local companies and inward investors. In this final 
quarter the level of enquiries has started to rise again, with the majority being from 
businesses looking to move into the borough. RDA are supporting the owner of the business 
destroyed by fire in February, helping identify alternative sites whilst he rebuilds his business. 
The majority of the staff have been found alternative temporary employment. 

I spoke at the ‘Meet the Buyer’ event held in conjunction with Willmott Dixon for the 
Rochdale Riverside scheme. Around 60 local construction trade businesses attended to find 
out what packages are available and how to become a sub-contractor to Willmott Dixon. All 
potential sub-contractor have been provided with information on local recruitment agencies to 
ensure maximum local economic benefit.  I am pleased that Rochdale firm Hovington Ltd 
have been one of the first companies to secure contracts worth almost  £6m.  

February saw the launch of the first Business Group on the Trans Pennine Industrial Estate. 
12 businesses attended and heard from partners and colleagues about the support available. 
Many of the businesses did not know each other prior to the event but I am pleased to say 
that some have already started doing business with each other on the back of this event. The 
group hopes to meet quarterly.

Thirty local businesses attended a networking event, held at one of the RDA’s new clients – 
Team Karting. The inspirational 21yr old business owner, Matty Street outlined his journey 
from under-achiever at school, to owner of a fast growing business. Delegates also heard 
about the support on offer to Rochdale businesses, and in particular how to access finance to 
help grow their business

The Council are assisting the Rochdale town centre Business Improvement District (BID) 
steering group through the next stage of the development of the BID.  Workshops, interviews 
and questionnaires will gauge the views of businesses and establish priorities which will form 
the basis of a prospectus in the lead up to the ballot expected in October.

I had a productive meeting with Lorraine Cox from STAR procurement where we discussed 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7d



how we could work towards increasing the council’s local spend from the current rate of 13% 
towards the national average of 19% and push the rate beyond that.

Employment

Public Health and Economic Affairs jointly chair the new Work and Health steering group 
required to oversee local actions under the Greater Manchester Health Population Plan.  This 
steering group will feed into the Locality Plan’s Access and Prevention Board, where system 
barriers or lack of capacity in addressing health needs in public services can be raised. 
One of the strands under this work is the Work and Health programme provides intensive 
support to job seekers and has targets around levels of pay and progression in jobs. The 
Economic Affairs team offer case management and operational support to this programme 
which is delivered by Ingeus and commissioned by the GM Combined Authority. The contract 
includes a range of Social Value indicators such as local jobs, work experience, volunteering 
and a community fund and will be closely monitoring these to ensure the borough benefits.

Another strand is The Early Help programme which will support recently unemployed and 
employees in small and medium sized businesses who, due to a health condition, risk losing 
their jobs. Locally, the team are working with a cluster of GP practices in Heywood to take this 
work forward once it has been commissioned.  Support is being provided to local 
organisations in the voluntary sector to be in the best position once the tender goes live in the 
next couple of months.        
The new Community Connector posts have now been recruited to in Adult Care. One to one 
employment support was provided to a number of unemployed people that were successful 
and from our priority groups including ex-service personnel.  The Economic Affairs Team will 
be delivering some of the induction sessions and supporting the development of staff going 
forward.
Training is also being delivered to staff working in health and social care, to make sure that 
‘Work’ is promoted as a health outcome and staff feel confident to have a conversation with 
people about the benefits and understand the local work and skills offer that’s currently 
available.

Skills

Funding has been provided to Link4Life to deliver their skills for sport programme to a 
particularly vulnerable group many of whom had recently experienced homelessness and 
were long term unemployed.  18 out of the initial 21 people completed the course, 58 
qualifications were gained and already 6 people have found gained employment with 
Link4Life.  There has also been some additional funding provided to support some people to 
obtain additional qualifications including pool lifeguarding and swim instructor, gym instructor 
training and FA Level 1 in coaching, which has helped secure one of the participants gain 
extra hours with Link4Life delivering Walking Football.  These qualifications have also been 
identified as areas of work that Link4Life and others have job vacancies in and have struggled 
to recruit staff to.

A small pot of money has also been provided to support PossAbilities to develop the DFE’s 
supported internship model that will, hopefully, be rolled out this September for young people 
aged 16 – 24 that have an Educational Health Care Plan.  

As part of my role in listening to local businesses, I visited Heywood company Paul Hartmann 
Ltd and met a local apprentice. He was last years’ employee of the year and is now studying 
for a degree whilst continuing in employment. He is a great advocate for the apprenticeship 
system.

Page 24



Funding

Support was provided to the Events Team and Link4Life to submit a bid to the Arts Council, 
which if successful, will fund a spin off “Town Square” arts festival involving performance 
artists and dance and craft workshops.

Following the success of the GMCA Full Fibre Challenge bid to DCLG for £23.8m, further 
work is now underway to ensure the borough benefits. The funding will be used to provide the 
latest fibre connectivity to public buildings. The private sector will then fund the roll out to 
businesses and homes. Greater Manchester’s ambition is to be the first major city-region in 
the UK to become ‘Fully Fibre’ and will send a very positive message to businesses and 
investors about Greater Manchester as a great place to do business. There will also be a 
Giga-bit voucher scheme to help businesses upgrade.

Councillor Liam O’Rourke
Portfolio Holder for Business, Skills and Employment

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of the Council 
about these or any other matter relating to the Business, Skills and Employment Portfolio

Page 25



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET MEMBER REPORT TO THE COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN’S SERVICES TO THE 
MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY 11th APRIL, 2018

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest 
developments on various matters relating to the Children’s Services Portfolio.

MYP Elections
The annual Member of Youth Parliament elections took place on Thursday 22nd 
February. This year 8,885 votes were cast with Anita Okunde elected as the new 
deputy member of youth parliament and Louis Tweedale, with 2092 votes, duly 
elected as the new Member of Youth Parliament for the borough. Members will 
remember Louise attending the February council meeting in his previous role of 
deputy MYP, where he spoke powerfully about votes for 16 -18 year olds.

Louis’ manifesto points are getting young people mental health support early, 
developing more activities for young people to do and more work 
experience/apprenticeship opportunities. 

Duke of Edinburgh Award Presentation Evening
Over 170 young people received their Duke of Edinburgh’s Award at the annual 
presentation evening organised by Rochdale Youth Service on Thursday 21st 
March at the Gracie Fields Theatre.

Bronze and Silver Awards were presented to young people from
Hollingworth High
Beech House
Falinge Park 
Rochdale Youth Service
1st Middleton Scouts Group
Oulder Hill Community School
Rochdale Islamic Academy
Wardle Academy

A further 4 young people received their Gold Award  having completed  this through 
Rochdale Youth Service at the Open Award Centre. Helaina Stone, Rebecca 
Bradley, Rowanne McBride and Laura Knowles will be receiving their certificates at 
St James Palace or Buckingham Palace later this year.

The evening was organised and hosted by young people completing their silver 
award from Oulder Hill School as part of their volunteering challenge.

Primary school admissions 
For September 2018 the council received (as of 19/03/2018) 2945 first Preference 
applications for Reception places. The borough capacity is 3214 places. 
Overcapacity for this September is partly due to a single year drop in birth rate of 
over 100 children, borough wide for this year intake. The birth rate for children age 
1 – 4 then rises again from September 2019 to 2021. 

Page 26

Agenda Item 7e



The number of children getting their first preference in September 2018 is likely to 
be about 92%. Two localities in the borough that do not have enough ‘local’ 
capacity; North Heywood and South Middleton.

Secondary Report
For this September we had 2888 children in the previous year 6 cohort. We are 
offering 2850 places in Secondary schools in the borough. We have received 2744 
first preference applications. We have offered 2773 places so far with 88.3% 
receiving their first preference. We are currently processing a further 51 late 
applications which will put our spare capacity at only 26 places borough wide if all 
offered places are taken up. 
There are local issues in Pennines Township, as more children have applied for 
places at Secondary schools than attend primary schools in the area. There are 
two Secondary Academy schools in the Pennines township; Wardle Academy and 
Hollingworth Academy. Hollingworth expanded in 2016 and Wardle have taken 
over capacity classes in 2014 and 2015 and have agreed to take extra children for 
this September. 

Currently Wardle Academy has an admission criteria that gives children closest to 
the school priority. Because of this children living near Littleborough, Calderbrook 
and Summit are ranked below those who live on the central side of Wardle 
Academy near Smallbridge. Officers from the authority are meeting with Wardle 
Academy to discuss how the admission system can be amended to stop those 
children living near the borough boundary missing out on places in their nearest 
school. The soonest this change can be made, if Wardle Academy are in 
agreement, is for September 2020 because of the schools requirement to adhere to 
a strict formal consultation process for the change. As an academy Wardle are 
allowed to set their own admissions criteria as long as it abides by the Admissions 
Code. Those children from Littleborough, Calderbrook and Summit, who are being 
offered places in Rochdale Township schools for September 2018, have been 
offered one-to-one sessions with Admissions officers.

Inspection of local authority children’s services ( ILACS)
From 29.1.18 – 9 .2.18 Ofsted carried out an inspection of Rochdale’s Children’s’ 
Services.  The inspection was the first nationally to be carried out under the new 
inspection framework. The inspection judges whether services and interventions 
are making a difference to improve the lives of children and young people in the 
Borough. In this way the inspection is measuring impact through the lens of the life 
of a child.
The inspection noted that services had improved in a number of areas and in 
particular services for cared 4 children, care leavers and adoption were judged to 
be Good. The role of the Corporate Parenting Board in driving this improvement 
was also recognised. 
The overall inspection judgement was that the service requires improvement to be 
good. 
Specific areas where further progress was needed were to improve outcomes for 
children in need of help and protection, particularly those who are living with 
domestic abuse and neglect. The role of managers in assuring quality was an area 
requiring further attention. 
An action plan aimed at continuing to address areas for improvement has been 
drafted and is in the process of being implemented. Ofsted will receive a copy of 

Page 27



this plan and will monitor progress with the council. The full report is available for 
any members who would be interested in receiving a copy.

Councillor Kieran Heakin
Portfolio Holder for Children’s Services

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of 
the Council about these or any other matter relating to the Children’s Services 
Portfolio

Page 28



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET MEMBER REPORT TO THE COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR ADULT CARE TO THE 
MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY 11 APRIL 2018

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest 
developments on various matters relating to the Adult Social Care Portfolio. I am 
very happy to report to you the progress made since I presented the last update to 
you in February 2018.

As we move towards the start date for the Local Care Organisation in April I wish to 
update you as to progress to date. A Chief Officer, Steve Taylor from the Northern 
Care Alliance, has been appointed. Steve will report back to me and other elected 
members via a number of ways including the Integrated Commissioning Board. In 
addition colleagues in Adult Care Operations have spent the last 3 months 
preparing to implement new structures and processes to enable Adult Care to align 
with the new integrated neighbourhood team arrangements. These new 
neighbourhood teams are a vital part of our new joint approach to managing 
people’s health and social care needs. A number of specialist services will still 
operate across the whole borough including Mental health and Learning Difficulties 
services.

If any members would like more information about what these changes means for 
their ward then please contact Steven Blezard who will arrange for you to be 
contacted and updated.

In terms of Delayed Transfers of Care from hospital these remain a high priority 
issue across the whole of our Health and Social care system. Rochdale Borough’s 
Adult Care are still working closely with colleagues in Pennine Care and Pennine 
Acute Trusts to ensure residents of the Borough do not remain in hospital if they 
don’t have to and our performance remains good. We are also working closely with 
health colleagues more generally across the Urgent Care System to ensure we as 
a system meet the GM target of 90% of people waiting in A and E for 4 hours or 
less by June 2018, a great challenge to us all.

In terms of service performance recent quality visits to users indicate a high degree 
of satisfaction with services provided; in fact 100% of those visited, a small but 
representative group, were very happy with our services. We continue to have an 
increase in the number of  people calling or contacting Adult Care  for a service but 
we can evidence some of the new prevention work is being successful in helping 
people find help locally or to help themselves become more resilient.  We actually 
now have less people in residential care and less people who need a package of 
care from the council , however those that do need support now tend to need more 
support so overall costs remain the same.

With respect to Adult Care commissioning I am pleased to inform you that a recent 
Greater Manchester (GM) Association of Directors of Adult Social Services 
(ADASS) report on the Care Quality Commission (CQC) quality ratings for Care 
Homes in GM showed that the percentage of Care Homes in Rochdale Borough 
that were rated by CQC as ‘Good’ or ‘Outstanding’ had increased from 53.9% to 

Page 29

Agenda Item 7f



73.2% between January and December 2017 a difference of 19.3. This put 
Rochdale in the top 15 most improved authorities nationally.

If any members would like a copy of the report please contact Dianne David who 
will arrange for the report to be forwarded to you.

In addition to the usual support given to providers by the commissioning team to 
improve the quality of provision there have been a number of initiatives that have 
supported care homes to improve. Capital resources have been made available to 
Care Homes to carry out improvements in the homes that improve the quality of life 
of residents and reduce the likelihood of them experiencing falls. In order to 
address recruitment issues across the care sector the Council has developed an 
apprenticeship scheme for care workers that will be recruiting apprentices in the 
next few months. The apprentices will have placements in adult care, care homes, 
home care and in an NHS setting to help them to gain experience in a wide range 
of care settings.

Further progress has also been made by the commissioning team in relation to 
market shaping and the provision of a diverse range of services available for 
vulnerable people across the borough. For example, the refurbishment work to 
transform the Springhill Resource Centre into a Dementia hub for a range of 
vulnerable has commenced. If members would like more information on the project 
please contact Dianne David.

Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed
Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of 
the Council about these or any other matter relating to the Adult Social Care 
Portfolio

Page 30



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET MEMBER REPORT TO THE COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT TO 
THE MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY, 11th APRIL 2018

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest 
developments on various matters relating to the Planning & Development Portfolio.

PLANNING
  
Head of Planning 
I am pleased to say that Paul Moore has recently joined the council as our new 
Head of Planning Services; some of you may have already met him at Cabinet and 
Planning Committee over the course of the last two weeks.

Paul joins us from Tameside where he was also Head of Planning and had been 
leading on work relating to the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework, proposals 
for Godley Green Garden Village and where he had recently finished implementing 
a major restructure of the service.

Development Management
In terms of Development Management, the most significant update relates to the 
J19 South Heywood application which was presented to the Planning and 
Licensing Committee on the 22nd March.  At that meeting, attended by over 70 
residents, the committee resolved to grant planning permission subject to the 
Secretary of State not wishing to intervene. The Head of Planning has now 
therefore referred the application to the National Planning Casework Unit (NPCU) 
for assessment.  Whilst the stated time period for decision is 21-days, it is expected 
that the NPCU will notify the LPA that more time needed and so no decision is 
expected before June at the earliest; after elections and the purdah period.

In my last briefing, I mentioned the forthcoming changes to statutory planning fees 
and the 20% increase and those are now in force.  I am also presenting a report to 
Cabinet recommending that delegated powers be given to the Assistant Director 
and Head of Planning which would allow them to negotiate Planning Performance 
Agreements directly with developers and applicants without the need to refer each 
and every agreement to cabinet.  

The use of performance agreements allows the service to agree bespoke 
timescales for decision on major development projects to support the delivery of a 
more commercially orientated service as well as providing us with an important 
opportunity to secure additional fee income for the service.     

BUILDING CONTROL

Town Centre Development (Rochdale Riverside)
You may recall that I advised at the previous meeting that the Council will be 
providing building regulation advice and consent for Riverside and I am pleased to 
confirm that the first site meeting has now taken place with our officers and Wilmott 

Page 31

Agenda Item 7g



Dixon, the contractors.  I will provide a further update on this at the next briefing. 

STRATEGIC ESTATES & ASSETS

Industrial Assets
The Council has this month exchanged contracts for the procurement of 11 new 
industrial units at Kingsway Business Park, providing a total of 61,000 sq ft of 
industrial floorspace. This transaction will provide smaller units to diversify the 
types of development at Kingsway and will further contribute to the Council’s 
objective of providing 40 units for small and starter businesses by 2020. The units 
will be expected to bring in an annual rent in the region of £415,000, targeting a 
return on investment in the region of 6%. The development is expected to be 
completed early in 2019.

Asset Strategy
The Council’s current Asset Strategy expires in March 2019. The strategy has set 
effectively the priorities and direction of the Council’s property management 
functions since 2016 and has overseen significant changes in the Council’s 
approach to asset management. Work is now commencing to refresh objectives 
and priorities for 2019/22.

Councillor D Ali
Portfolio Holder for Planning & Development

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of 
the Council about these or any other matter relating to the Planning & Development 
Portfolio

Page 32



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET MEMBER REPORT TO THE COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR NEIGHBOURHOODS, COMMUNITY 
AND CULTURE TO THE MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY, 11TH 

APRIL 2018

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest 
developments on various matters relating to the NEIGHBOURHOODS, 
COMMUNITY AND CULTURE Portfolio.

Safer Communities
Increasing confidence & satisfaction
The Police and Crime Commissioner’s Grant has enabled us to provide additional 
funding to improve the resources for children using Rochdale’s domestic abuse 
refuge service. 

Community Cohesion and Resilience
We have delivered and supported borough wide events and activities bringing 
different communities together, creating mutual understanding, sharing our 
common values as citizens of the borough and offering constructive challenge 
where differences do exist to build tolerance and respect. 

 Refugee Tales at the Pioneers Museum on International Mother 
Language Day 

 Ongoing work with the Red Cross supporting Asylum Seekers and 
Refugees

 Integration Forum with the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local 
Government and different faith group representatives 

 Direct community engagement sessions for the GM Mayor’s Commission on 
Hateful Extremism and Social Cohesion 

 A Community Dialogue event facilitated by the borough’s community 
activists and champions whose training in conflict resolution, peace 
building and building bridges across communities allows communities a 
safe space to hold difficult conversations and discuss what is important to 
them. 

The Council continues to work with the Police in the prevention of crime; we have 
completed many ‘Home Security Surveys’ and alley gate schemes with a 
particular focus on supporting victims of distraction burglaries and elderly / 
vulnerable residents. 

Reducing Crime and ASB
Additional funding from the Police & Crime Commissioner’s Grant is helping to 
address the trend of unauthorised off-road bike use in Rochdale, Heywood and 
Middleton. Investment in enforcement signage and continued collaborative work 
with key partners aims to reduce the impact caused. 

The Partnership Enforcement Team continues to work in reducing crime in 
Rochdale. This includes contributing to the arrest of four individuals, one of whom 
is alleged to be a member of a local organised crime group. 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7h



Business Continuity and Emergency Planning
Recent events, the fires on Albert Royds Street and Hare Hill Road and the recent 
heavy snow spells, have caused us to activate our emergency procedures. Our 
Forward Incident Officers, building inspectors and senior managers coordinated 
the Council’s response with the Emergency Services in all cases.  Our local 
communities, historically, have responding positively to emergencies and the recent 
ones were no exception. We are looking at ways to improve local resilience by 
supporting local communities with better information as their contribution and 
cooperation is vital during major incidents.

Townships
Township Committees and Delegated Sub-Committees
Township Committees took place during March. Items raised by members of the 
public during open forums included: rights of way, concerns with an increase in the 
number of HGVs in populated areas, empty properties and concerns with regard to 
reductions in police numbers.  All Townships received and approved details of the 
Highways Indicative two year work programme. 

The final round of delegated sub-committees have taken place, schemes and 
projects funded in this cycle include: Holiday at Home – Fit & Fed; Enviro Gym 
Equipment; Additional Lighting Column; Healthy Lifestyles Project; I.T. Suite 
Equipment; Disabled Access Toilet; Drainage Improvements; and Various Traffic 
Regulation Orders.

Armed Forces 
The Rochdale Veterans’ Breakfast Club, which brings together the Armed Forces 
Community and provides needed informal welfare support, has received an 
additional 12 months’ funding. 
A dedication service on Ark Royal Avenue, remembered Whipp and Bourne 
workers and those who served on Ark Royal. A Dedication Service was held at 
Norden after the installation of a new flag pole and improvement works on the 
memorial grounds. Both events were very well attended. 
Fusilier 50 takes place on the 28th April when the Royal Regiment of Fusiliers will 
march through the centre of Rochdale. Events continue throughout the year 
culminating on the 11th Hour of the 11th  Day of the 11th Month, exactly 100 years 
after the end of The Great War. Lest We Forget.

Libraries, Customer Services and Advice
A fines amnesty held in February encouraged customers and stock back into the 
libraries. It was very successful (results below). Customers were pleased they 
could start using the services again after feeling awkward about using them due to 
not being able afford fines.  

 396 customers took part
 659 books have been returned, only 19 were damaged
 280 books were classed as long overdue
 Total amount waived = £5899.79 (£548.82 of this total was over 10 years 

old)  
A number of staff have decided to retire from the service leaving a number of 
vacancies. We wish them a long and happy retirement. 
World Book day was interrupted by the snow on 1st March, so many events had to 
be postponed.
Customer service staff are due to start training with the DWP soon to ensure that 

Page 34



we are ready for Universal Credit Full Service in May. 
This year’s Digital Festival is taking place on Saturday 30th June at N1R. 

Events
Over 4,500 people visited Rochdale on Saturday 24th March for the first Rochdale 
Food & Drink Festival. The celebration of food and drink was staged inside and 
around the Town Hall and was packed with stalls, live cooking, star chefs, bars, 
workshops and family entertainment.  During the morning festival, highlights were 
broadcast live on BBC Radio Manchester.
Chefs Jean-Christophe Novelli, Nisha Katona, Andrew Nutter and Tom McNeeney 
delivered masterclasses in the festival kitchen.  CBeebies ‘I Can Cook’ presenter 
Katy Ashworth got the loudest reception of the day from the excited children who 
loved her family show, learning about where food comes from through music and 
games.
The reception room was transformed into a 1920’s-themed bar for the day hosting 
a series of free workshops. The Festival also hosted the first cake competition, 
judged by top chef Jean-Christophe Novelli and local cake supremo Natasha 
Brown from Brown’s Cakes.  The standard of all the cakes entered into the 
competition was outstanding, there are some talented bakers in our borough.
A gourmet four course dinner, by Andrew Nutter, concluded the Festival in the 
Clock Tower Dining Room.  Overall it was a success, feedback was positive and 
we will repeat it.

Voluntary Sector
We are now in the process of setting out our commissioning plans for our new 
voluntary sector infrastructure support (to replace the arrangements that CVS 
previously delivered on our behalf) and aim to have a new service in operation from 
quarter 3 of 2018/9. We have been able to safely 'lift and shift' those services that 
were deemed as essential for patient and client safety to temporary alternative 
providers including the Volunteer Driver Scheme and the Health and Wellbeing 
Alliance support role and have been monitoring these to ensure that there is 
continuity of service. 

Link4Life Update March 2018

Sport and Leisure
At Middleton Arena the gym and indoor cycling studio refurbishment is nearing 
completion, studio equipment replacement will have been completed by 31st March 
2018.
Fitness team structures are being remodelled to include Personal Training (PT) 
provision by our in house staff and some external providers which should enhance 
the offer to our fitness members.
UK Active’s recent benchmarking exercise has revealed Link4Life to be performing 
above the national averages in relation to key membership performance indicators 
with both attrition (the rate members leave - 6.03%, Nat Average 6.50%) and 
membership length - 19.50 months Nat Average 16.93 - better than the national 
averages for the industry.

Swimming Pool Programming: 
The review and implementation of new swimming pool programmes has been 
paused whilst the Aquatic Strategy (with specific reference to clubs) has been 
agreed with RBC and further consultation has been undertaken with user groups.

Page 35



Hollingworth Lake: 
The introduction of the retail offer is nearing fruition with design and prices for 
miniport boats and pedalos complimenting the existing rowing boats and 
paddleboards. Link4Life are searching for a potential passenger boat option and a 
boat has been viewed to assess a potential future Lady Alice replacement, subject 
to funding/resources being available.  Conversations are ongoing in respect at 
looking at cross sector working with the countryside rangers and NatureEd to cross 
sell and enhance our delivery especially with Health and Wellbeing in the outdoors.

Children and Young People: (Feb Half Term Programme)
Middleton Arena - 38 independent participants attended the play scheme with the 
majority of children attending from a M24 postcode. 63 individual participants 
overall attended the activities on offer at Middleton Arena with 8 children attending 
from the Oldham Borough. The Kids Cinema was a success with an overall 
attendance of 226 and a profit of £253.00.  34 children from the play scheme also 
attended the Kids’ Cinema as part of the Holiday Club offer.  
Heywood Sports Village - HSV had 44 participants with 25 of those participants 
enrolled on the play scheme.
Rochdale Leisure Centre - Rochdale continued with regular bookings and no play 
scheme.  As an alternative we built on the previous popularity of Sports Zone 
sessions by extending the hours to 9am – 5pm.  The Sports Zone Extras sessions 
were well attended - 32 attendances and 22 participants. Positive feedback from 
parents called the sessions ‘great value for money’.
Littleborough Sports Centre and Bowlee Sports Park - Each satellite site 
provided a varied programme of activities for children over the February half term.  
Littleborough had a multi sports day for 5-7 years which also featured an arts and 
craft session.  The session had a 92% uptake. Bowlee Park Sports Centre had an 
outstanding uptake throughout February half term with 100% of their 3 sessions 
being filled.

Culture
GMCA Social Impact Fund – Link4Life has been pledged 2 years’ funding (£320k 
pa) from GMCA. Funds will be distributed across GM through the Greater 
Manchester Arts Network to deliver cultural programmes.  Rochdale’s allocation will 
be used to match fund other cultural grant applications, e.g. street theatre 
programming for the Feelgood Festival in order to grow the investment and impact.

Dippy – Link4Life has permission from the Heritage Lottery Fund to start, a first 
stage investment pledge of £50k has been made to develop the programme. A 
stage 2 allocation of £200k is available if Link4Life and RBC meet requirements for 
stage 2 funding including development of an activity plan and achievement of the 
£300k match fundraising target. Tenders for exhibition design, activity planning and 
fundraising have been advertised along with two new posts shortly to be recruited 
to support education and community engagement

Touchstones’ Manifesto is now displayed in the main lobby of the museum, 
please visit to see.

Touchstones’ February Family Fun day attracted over 300 children and families. 
The immersive event included live actors in period costume, green screen digital 
activities and participatory workshops themed around the iconic flour barrel in the 

Page 36



collection. More recently, as part of BBC civilisations, the museum offered free 3d 
printing of items from the Egyptian collection for children to watch being made and 
take home.  

Health and Wellbeing
 submitted bids to Escape Pain National pilot (unsuccessful) & GM Active 

Ageing application to Sport England (focus on Carers) – outcome expected 
before end of March.

 completed 3 FRESH programmes at Holy Family, Cross Gates & St Mary’s. 
 supported Women Making Changes group (RBUF) with advice on nutrition, 

weight management & health.
 delivered 2 x 4 week nutrition courses at Brownhill Pupil Learning Centre 

with years 8 to 10 pupils with a range of learning & behavioural issues & now 
offering family cooking sessions at Brownhill.

 introduced an email subscription for L4L staff to receive weekly nutrition 
advice & assisting in Fitbit pilot programme with weigh in & nutrition advice.

 supported FRESH Fest at Heywood Sports Village – an interactive nutrition 
sessions to 43 pupils from 4 schools alongside sports coaches targeting 
inactive children.

 the Exercise Referral redesign is progressing with new self-efficacy 
questions agreed, standard questionnaires for Refer All system agreed & 
discussions ongoing with cardiac rehab team around fast –tracking into 
activity. 

 the Exercise Referral scheme has seen an increase of people completing 
the 12 week scheme & also those taking out a Link4Life fitness membership.

 Integrated Neighbourhood Team (INT) work is progressing well - 4th staff 
member recruited & starting in January. 168 patients referred between April 
2017 & December 2018. Heywood Township report says what a positive 
difference it has made to local residents. 

 CCG funding of £28k agreed for 1819 for Functional Fitness, Complex 
conditions & COPD sessions to be delivered.

 49 participants completed last two Functional fitness courses with 35 on 
waiting list for next courses – 15 new referrals also received from falls team 
to assess as ‘routine fallers’ rather than ‘frequent fallers’ – 8 of these now 
offered places on FF/ 2 referred back to falls team & 5 will be offered places 
on next courses.

 currently working with 11 patients with complex Long Term Conditions on a 
1:2:1 basis with 56 participants now in small group sessions.

 funding confirmed of £6500 from Stroke Association for new GM pilot (3 
areas of GM) to commence March 2018. Two staff completed L4 Exercise 
after Stroke qualification with funding provided by Stroke Association

Sport and Physical Activity
Activ8teme’s 4th Birthday was a huge success, 240 people attended, positive 
feedback from everyone and £272 was raised for Springhill Hospice.
Azeem Amir, a L4L All4Sport Ambassador with a visual disability, L4L’s ‘Sports 
Performer of the Year’, has been given a FA scholarship programme, one of only 
six in the country.

Positive feedback:
Active8teme
I wanted to say a massive thank you, the Zumba class is very hard, but you have 

Page 37



given me the confidence to keep going!  Without you, I would have lasted 5 minutes 
and been put off for life.

Disability Provision
“I think that my son has really benefited from the residential from a social point of 
view as he got to make new friends and join in activities with them that in some 
places may not have been available to him and he has been able to be a part of the 
team and join in.  He really enjoyed the Residential especially the Zip wire as this is 
something he loves!!! It was also great to try different things that aren't always 
accessible to him such as Indoor caving.”

Councillor Janet Emsley
Portfolio Holder for NEIGHBOURHOODS, COMMUNITY AND CULTURE 
Portfolio.

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of 
the Council about these or any other matter relating to the NEIGHBOURHOODS, 
COMMUNITY AND CULTURE Portfolio.

Page 38



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET MEMBER REPORT TO THE COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER for HEALTH AND WELLBEING

MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY, 11th APRIL 2018

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest developments on 
various matters relating to the Health and Wellbeing Portfolio.

Rochdale continues to work on the transformation of Health and Care services by utilising 
the transformation fund awarded by the GM Health and Social Care Partnership, focussing 
on providing early and joined up support to people to prevent unnecessary hospitalisation 
and in building resilient communities to support sustainability. 

The Local Care Organisation has continued to develop and over the last six months has had 
the responsibility for implementing nine of the key transformation fund interventions. 
Following a due diligence process which will complete at the end of March, the intention is 
for this LCO work to expand to 17 interventions, including primary care, urgent care and 
neighbourhood schemes. 

The LCO Board will be formally established by 1 April 2018 and will have a Chief Officer role 
in place, along with a leadership team to drive the delivery of transformation forward. This is 
a step change from the current interim arrangements. 
The LCO is in the process of developing a Partnership Agreement, which although not a 
legal document, will set out clearly the role of the LCO and the organisations within it. 

Public engagement and communication remains a keep priority to support transformation. A 
more detailed communications plan is being developed and a programme of engagement 
events is in place. 

At the Health and Wellbeing Board on the 27th March we signed off a summary of our latest 
Borough Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA), our Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 
and noted that we now have a joint sign up with CCG to the Local Declaration on Healthy 
Weight. A copy of the summary can be found on the Council Health and Wellbeing Board 
page. 

A development session is planned to establish a new format for the future arrangements of 
the Health and Wellbeing Board, which will support a more consultative approach and 
enable us to work with a wider range of partners and focus on some of our key health 
challenges in the Borough. 

The ‘build’ of the “Our Rochdale” directory of services website is largely complete and the 
website is due to enter a soft launch phase on the 1st April.  This will make the website 
available via the internet, and will replace the functionality of the current Family Service 
Directory which has been migrated and successfully absorbed into the wider Our Rochdale 
directory.  

We have made some final adjustments and the directory is currently being populated with 
information on a range of NHS and health related providers.  

Page 39

Agenda Item 7i



Staff engagement sessions have been held to encourage teams to come forward with 
content for inclusion during the soft launch period as well as any suggestions for future 
developments that could further enhance the website.   

A public launch will be supported by a communications campaign in April/May by posters in 
public areas such as council buildings and GP practices and press releases; aspects of this 
campaign will align with the launch of the EASY (Easy Access to Services for You) Hubs.

The EASY face to face offer provides a place for people with health and social care queries 
to go; to access a ‘Community Connector’ and to access information and advice about how 
to navigate the health and social care system. This service offer will be based at the four 
Hub sites across the four townships as follows 

 Phoenix Centre Heywood,
 Middleton Health Centre
 Littleborough Health Centre 
 Rochdale Infirmary.

Work is ongoing to formalise the tenancy of the hub sites. The Community Connector 
service is part of the ‘core team’ delivery and prevention system, supported by and working 
alongside other interdependent services; Health Trainers, Health and Wellbeing Coaches, 
Community Builders, ‘Living Well’ Mental Health Team and as such will share sessional 
space in the hubs and outreach locations for example Libraries to maximise service delivery 
and outcomes.

Recruitment to the Community Connector Service was recently undertaken and was very 
positive; there were 49 applicants for 12 posts, all successful candidates are residents of the 
borough. A training plan for the Community Connector Service is being co-produced with 
partners to develop skills and knowledge around what we are terming the BIG 6, ie the 
priority areas that local people tell us are important to them; 
1.Employment – Volunteering – Training, 
2.Housing, 
3.Money Management and Benefits, 
4.Lifestyles including Mental Health, 
5.Access to Preventative Services, 
6.Getting involved in ‘Our Communities’.

The testing Phase of the Community Connector Service will commence 16th April to 30th 
April with referrals from specific GP Practices and Focused Care Workers. From the 30th 
April for 2 weeks the service will be rolled out to all GP Practices to facilitate a phased 
operational implementation of the service. The Official launch of the service will be on the 
14th May.

Making Smoking History in Rochdale
Tobacco remains our biggest preventable cause of ill health and early death in Rochdale 
and a wide number of work streams are being driven forward to tackle this addiction. It is 
promising to see that 8 clubs have now signed up to our Smoke Free Sports programme, our 
joint work with Rochdale AFC is going from strength to strength and a ‘stop before the op’ 
nurse has been recruited to embed pathways to tackle tobacco addition in Pennine Acute 
Hospital Trust. Also residents from Rochdale have been given the chance to play their part 
in making history, as Greater Manchester bids to be the first place in the world to Make 
Smoking History within a decade. Our team have been in Rochdale town centre, and at a 

Page 40



Rochdale Football Club match, to capture resident’s thoughts on how we can tackle smoking 
and make the Greater Manchester vision a reality. The information captured will be included 
in our Rochdale Making Smoking History Framework for action to be finalised in June.

Health and Employment
The Rochdale Work and Health Steering Group met for the first time during March, drawing 
together key partners to provide system leadership and governance for the joint programme 
of work relating to health and employment within Rochdale. The steering group agreed to 
develop a ‘Working Well System’ action plan and finalise a scoping document to identify 
gaps and opportunities across the borough. Rochdale Borough Council is a key member on 
the steering group and council leads are looking for RBC to set the gold standard around 
workplace wellbeing. A workshop is being planned for May to capture views from a wide 
range of council employees to feed into a Rochdale Borough Council Workplace Wellbeing 
strategy.

Food Team –Greater Manchester Healthier Catering Award
This award is open to all food businesses that have a food hygiene rating of 3 and above, 
the Food team have recently assessed a further ten schools for the healthier catering award 
the team have agreed to assess all schools in the Borough by 2020, the schools have to 
have good food hygiene standards, healthier options and use sustainable local suppliers this 
is to improve standards and also to offer healthier options for children whilst having a well-
balanced meal.

Food and Drink Festival
The Food team liaised with the food traders prior to the event and inspected on the day over 
30 traders to make a successful event.

Licensing team – Gambling inspections
Under the Gambling Act 2005, the Licensing Authority is also responsible for dealing with the 
following permits and registrations for Unlicensed Family Entertainment, Centre Gaming 
Machine Permits, Registration of Small Lottery, Licences Club Gaming Machine Permits, 
Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits, Prize Gaming Permits. The Licensing Team 
have been carrying out annual compliance inspections to all the gambling premises in the 
borough. 

At the time of the inspections most premises were demonstrating a high level of compliance. 
It has been necessary for revisits to be made to some premises where minor issues have 
been identified to bring them into compliance. 

Councillor Sara Rowbotham
Portfolio Holder for Health and Wellbeing

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of the 
Council about these or any other matter relating to the Health and Wellbeing Portfolio

Page 41



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRTUINY COMMITTEE TO 
THE MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY, 11th APRIL 2018

Thank you Mr Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest 
developments on various matters relating to the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.

The penultimate meeting of the Committee took place on 13 February 2018 the day 
before Full Council. Unfortunately due to ill-health I missed both meetings and must 
thank Councillor Sultan Ali for chairing the meeting.

The Committee again discussed paperless meetings and agreed that in the new 
municipal year it would consult members to gauge the visibility of such meetings at 
member level.

The Chief Finance Officer presented a number of routine reports including:
- Finance Update Report 2017/2018
- Collection Fund 2017/2018
- Revenue Budget Update 2018/2019 to 2020/2021

Members had the opportunity to question Directorate Managers who had been 
asked to attend to explain their current overspends.

DISCRETIONARY BUSINESS RATE RELEIF POLICY
Following a change announced in the Autumn Statement, this policy needed to be 
reviewed. The director of resources in a report to go to cabinet identified two 
options:

Option 1 was to introduce a maximum rateable value of £51,000 above which relief 
would not be granted to charitable and not for profit organisations. This would raise 
an extra £205,000 for Council

Option 2 would see no change to the policy.

At the subsequent Budget Fixing Council, Option 1 was agreed.

A further tranche of reports from the Chief Finance Officer was received and 
scrutinised in preparation for the Budget Fixing Council. These included:

- Treasury Management Strategy 2018/2019
- Capital, Investment and disposal Strategy 
- Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/2019 to 2022/2023
- Budget 2018/2019. Local Government Act 2003 requirements
- Revenue Budget/Capital Programme and Council Tax 2018/2019
The last meeting of the municipal year was held on 20 March 2018.

Prior to the commencement of the meeting, John Searle and his colleague Gary 
Davis of the RDA gave the presentation to members of both the Corporate O & S 
Committee and their colleagues on the Regeneration & Committee O & S 
Committee as to the current position and the decision making process in respect of 

Page 42

Agenda Item 7j



the Town Centre East Development 

The presentation was extremely informative and was much appreciated by those 
who attended.

The main items of the business both related to:

HEALTH RELATED ABSENCES
The first report was the routine reporting of the third quarter figures for 2017/2018 
where it was noted that there had been a reduction of 0.39 day per full time 
equivalent (2.75 days down to 2.36 days) when compared with the same period 
last year.

The second report, prepared by Rosemary Barker, Head of Workforce and 
Organisational Development, detailed the work of the Study Group who had been 
meeting to review the policies, practices and procedures in place to manage staff 
sickness.

After much discussion, the Committee agreed the following recommendations:

- Routine reporting would be reduced from quarterly to six monthly.

- The Council’s position within AGMA will be taken into account by the 
Leadership Team when setting attendance targets.

- The Head of Workforce and OD should assess appropriate provisions to 
support employees experiencing non-work related stress which should 
include encouraging staff to undertake training in metal health first aid.

- Finally to continue to review how the Health and Well-Being Strategy was 
impacting on the reduction in sickness absence.

Finally, as this is the last report of the year, I would wish to take the opportunity to 
thank all members of the Committee, all the other members and officers who have 
attended to present to Committee for their contribution to the important work of 
Scrutiny and to Peter Thompson for his sterling work throughout the year.

Councillor Robert Clegg 
Chair of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Thank you Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of the 
Council about these or any other matter relating to the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

Page 43



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE CHAIR’S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT 
OVERVIEW AND SCRTUINY COMMITTEE TO THE

MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY, 11th April 2018

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest 
developments on various matters relating to the Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Committee has met once, on 21st March, since my last report to Council on 
14th February 2018. 
  
Integrated Place Work – The Committee received a very interesting and informative 
presentation on the Integrated Place Work project. The Integrated Place project 
involves a group of workers from different public services and third sector 
organisations who work together in a particular area. The team is led by Rochdale 
Borough Council. The team includes a number of organisations (such as RBH, 
Police and the Fire and Rescue Service).
The team works in a particular area for a period of time to support people who may 
need lots of different services at the same time. The idea is that, instead of having 
to access these services separately, it makes more sense for all organisations to 
work together to help the person move on. For example, a person might need help 
with housing, health and relationships all at the same time. That can be quite 
confusing so the team would help to put those services in an order that makes 
sense. They would also help the person to be more confident in asking for help or 
learning to do something.
The presentation generated a full debate at the meeting and numerous questions 
from members. We were pleased to learn of projects in the Balderstone and 
Kirkholt and Spotland and Falinge Wards. The project is due to begin operations on 
a Township level which means that it will be able to spread to all parts of the 
Borough in due course. A follow up presentation/report will be brought back to the 
Committee in about six months.

Housing Allocations: the Committee received a report which outlined the Council’s 
responsibilities that had been placed on it by the introduction of the Homelessness 
Reduction Act. The proposal of the Act was to move from a Choice Based Lettings 
approach to allocate accommodation, to making direct offers to those who are 
found to be homeless and who the Council has a statutory duty to rehouse. The 
report advised that on occasions, it would be necessary for the Council to make an 
offer of accommodation in the private rented sector, in order to discharge its duty.
A future proposal to amend the Housing Allocations Policy later this year is also 
detailed within the report. As with the previous item this report generated much 
discussion and many questions from Members which I feel demonstrates the 
effectiveness of the scrutiny function.

Performance reporting: The Committee received two reports which detailed 
progress at the end of Quarter 3 (1st October – December 31st 2017) towards 
achievement of the targets contained in the Neighbourhoods and Economy 
Directorate Plans for 2017/18. The report contained much statistical information 

Page 44

Agenda Item 7k



and data about the performance of these two Directorates. Members asked 
questions about the way that the data is presented and I will be holding a meeting 
with appropriate staff that will look at how the data and information can in future be 
presented in a more user friendly and clearly understandable way.

Balfour Beatty Limited: the Committee considered a request that had come from 
Rochdale Township Committee who had asked the Committee to consider 
establishing a ‘study group to examine the operation of the Highways Maintenance 
Contract for the Rochdale Borough, especially in relation to the performance of 
Balfour Beatty Limited and, if necessary, make appropriate recommendations to the 
Cabinet thereon’. The Committee in considering this matter noted that the Council’s 
Audit and Governance Committee was already doing some work in this regard as is 
the Council’s Internal Audit team. Therefore it was agreed that once this work was 
completed myself the Vice Chair and the Chair of the Audit and Governance would 
look into the matter in more detail.
  
GMCA Corporate Issues & Reform Overview & Scrutiny Committee: I continue to 
attend meetings of the Greater Manchester Combined Authority Corporate Issues & 
Reform Overview & Scrutiny Committee.  Andy Burnham, the GM Mayor also 
attends meetings of this Committee and a constructive dialogue with him and his 
team is beginning to emerge.
 

Councillor Neil Butterworth
Chair of the Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of 
the Council about these or any other matter relating to the Communities, 
Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Page 45



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE CHAIR’S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE CHAIR OF THE HEALTH, SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE TO THE

MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY, 11th APRIL 2018

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest 
developments on various matters relating to the Health, Schools and Care 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Committee has met once since my last report to the Council meeting on 14th 
February.

North West Ambulance Service
The Committee received a detailed presentation from representatives on the two 
main areas of work for of the North West Ambulance Service:  Emergency Care 
and Patient Transport Service. The Emergency Care service has come under 
particular scrutiny following the Kerslake Report and winter pressures effects on 
ambulance services.  The Committee were told about the new performance 
indicators which are not yet being met but are improving and how they are trying to 
get the right response to each call to ensure the best care although this will not 
necessarily mean a hospital emergency department. 

  

The Patient Transport service provides 45,000 patient journeys in the borough each 
year.  While 80% of these are planned journeys for appointments and treatment, 
20% are linked to hospital discharge and unplanned and where most complaints 
arise.  

Increased demand, average travel times across Greater Manchester and staff 
recruitment and retention while funding is reduced are their biggest challenges.  
Members queried the location of ambulance stations, support for staff after trauma 
and the promise to always have a paramedic on board following the closure of 
Rochdale A&E but the transformation of the NHS services is changing this picture 
again and so rather than taking everyone to A&E, taking them to the right place is 
now given higher priority.

In receiving the presentation, the Committee also expressed its best wishes for a 
long and happy retirement to the North West Ambulance Service’s Chief Executive, 
Mr Derek Cartwright.

Page 46

Agenda Item 7l



Adult Care Market Oversight Report: Quarter 3 - 2017/18
The Adult Care Service commissions external provider services to deliver care 
services to adults with eligible social care needs. The Adult Care commissioning 
team assures the quality of these services. The Committee has previously 
requested quarterly updates on quality assurance information for the services 
commissioned by the Adult Care service and details were included in the report.  
Concerns were raised about the number of out of borough providers and in 
particular those that are rated as ‘inadequate’ by the CQC.  Members were assured 
that Commissioners will check these again to ensure improvement.

Additional Funding for Adaptations
The Committee considered a report/presentation that provided us with information 
on additional government funding for adaptations and how we as a Council can 
make best use of this funding to support elderly, disabled and vulnerable residents 
to continue to live as independently as possible in their own homes for as long as 
they want to.

The Government has increased funding in by 79% for Disabled Facilities Grants 
and made the decision to move it into the Better Care Fund in 2015/16, on the 
basis that there is a growing evidence base on the contribution that housing can 
make to good health and wellbeing. At a system level, poor housing costs the NHS 
at least £1.4bn per annum and there are also costs to local government and social 
care. In our Borough, officers have used Regulatory Reform Orders to streamline 
these services and ensure that more people get an adaptation sooner.  They have 
done several innovative actions, including work with Care Homes, who accounted 
for a large proportion of falls resulting in hip fractures because of the frailty of their 
residents, to improve flooring and bathing facilities to improve the lives of the most 
vulnerable.  Allowing for additional grants to be made for larger works to enable 
larger adaptations to be done.  Members were very pleased to hear of these 
developments and want to see the speed of this work continued. 

Adult Care Fees
The Committee received a report that had previously been considered by the 
Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) who had approved proposed fee rate 
increases for a range of Adult Social Care services delivered by externally 
commissioned providers in Rochdale Borough.  There was discussion about fees 
for sleep-ins and impact on our providers and those they care for.  It was 
recognised that the adoption of the National Living Wage is squeezing some 
providers but this is part of the on-going discussions but at the forefront of 
everyone’s minds is the needs of the person receiving care.

Councillor Wendy Cocks
Chair of the Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of 
the Council about these or any other matter relating to the Health, Schools and 
Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Page 47



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

OUTSIDE BODY REPRESENTATIVE’S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE GREATER MANCHESTER WASTE DISPOSAL AUTHORITY
REPRESENTATIVE TO THE MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY, 11th 
APRIL 2018

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest 
developments on various matters relating to the Greater Manchester Waste Disposal 
Authority.

Authority Meeting/General Update
The Authority meeting on the 15th March 2018 was the last ever meeting as GMWDA 
will be wound up and all statutory powers, assets and staff will transfer to GMCA 
from 1st April. Transitional arrangements are in place to ensure a smooth transition.

The Authority considered a number of reports on performance monitoring, contract 
progress, wind up of GMCWaR, communications and behavioural change and the 
impact of Chinese restrictions on imports of paper and card on market capacity and 
income. This latter report demonstrated the potential for additional costs to be 
incurred for paper recycling over the course of the next 18 months as alternate 
market capacity is developed in India, Vietnam and Thailand. In that time, significant 
effort needs to be applied to continuing to improve the quality of the recyclables 
collected at the kerbside and to reduce contamination rates. Paper and card from 
Greater Manchester has a typical contamination rate of 5-7% compared to the EU 
standard of 1.5% and the new Chinese standard of 0.5%. Reducing contamination 
therefore needs to be a key feature of our communications and behavioural change 
campaigns over the next year to improve this position.

Contract Update/targets
Figures to end of March 2018 show that landfill diversion remains high at c.86%. 
This has been impacted by the Bolton TRF being offline following the fire in 
September 2017, had the plant been operational then diversion of c.89% may have 
been achieved. Works have now started at the TRF to reinstate the turbine building 
with the intention of the facility operating as an incinerator by June 2018. The turbine 
installation could take another 12 to 15 months meaning there will be no electricity 
generation until this element of the works is completed.

Communications Update
Salford flats – The 2nd phase is nearly complete. Food waste bins were introduced 
at a number of Social Housing properties managed by City West Housing Trust 
properties in Eccles, Salford. This has proved to be more challenging, mainly due to 
existing contamination issues in the current recycling facilities and with delivering 
food caddies to residents. The team were not able to leave caddies outside 
resident’s doors or leave the caddies with caretakers as in phase 1. Therefore we 

Page 48

Agenda Item 8a



carried out door knocking and letter drops; where residents were not home, a letter 
was provided with details of how to collect caddies from a nearby garden centre. Due 
to this, it is anticipated that participation in the service will be lower than the first 
phase of the trial. 

Borough wide campaigns- It has been agreed with districts that the first round of 
whole district campaigns will be run in partnership with Manchester, Tameside, 
Salford and Oldham which will focus on mixed recycling. Bin stickers and leaflets will 
be delivered across each district from May 2018.

A paper and card contamination campaign will be delivered in Bolton, again bin 
stickers and leaflets will be delivered to every household (except flats). All 
campaigns will be supported by extensive community and school engagement, as 
well as crew and call centre training and engagement with staff at large businesses 
across the 5 districts. Paper and card contamination will be a key feature in all 
campaigns now due to the Chinese import restrictions. Further targeted campaigns 
are being scoped out and will focus on individual rounds. 

Advertising – Monthly newspaper adverts in the MEN and the local district papers 
continue. The current theme for March/April is about plastic bottle recycling. The next 
advert will be about paper and cardboard contamination.
Bus stop and tram stop advertising is also being procured at key locations across 
Greater Manchester and will run for 2 weeks in June and 2 weeks in October. In 
addition we are trialling smart screens at large Tesco and Morrison’s stores. These 
are digital screens at the entrance to stores and will run at the same time as the bus 
and tram advertising.

E-learning – an e-learning module is being developed with colleagues in Fire who 
are responsible for the internal e-learning training. The first module will be tailored for 
the bin crews and we will be looking to trial this on one of the districts once it has 
been finalised.

Education – The displays at the 2 educations centres in Bolton and Longley Lane 
are being updated and refreshed in line with new branding and messaging.

Councillor Zaman
Greater Manchester Waste Disposal Authority Representative

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of 
the Council about these or any other matter relating to the Greater Manchester 
Waste Disposal Authority 

Page 49



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

OUTSIDE BODY REPRESENTATIVE’S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE REPRESENTATIVE TO THE
TRANSPORT FOR GREATER MANCHESTER COMMITTEE

TO THE MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY, 11th APRIL 2018

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest 
developments on various matters relating to the Transport for Greater Manchester 
(TfGM) Committee.

Stakeholder update 
The Committee has considered new developments regarding Concessionary Bus 
Passes. These passes would normally be recorded via a ‘smart reader’ at ticket 
machines, although TfGM do recognise that on occasions this hasn’t happened and 
drivers have recorded travel manually.
 
The way the scheme works is that operators are reimbursed for concessionary 
travel on a ‘no-better/no-worse’ position. From 1st April 2018, the calculations will 
be made based on recordings via the smart card reader and customers using 
concessionary passes must, therefore, register their journey with a valid pass or 
pay the full adult fare.
 
TfGM have made efforts to reach out to all groups to raise awareness of this, to 
ensure concessionary customers get into the habit of using their passes on the 
reader and are therefore able to take appropriate action to replace out-of-date or 
faulty passes as soon as possible to avoid paying for their travel from 1st April 2018.

Changes to bus services in the Borough
In line with statutory procedures TfGM are required to notify district councils of 
recommendations to change subsidised services therefore the Bus Networks and 
TfGM Service Sub-committee on 9th March 2018 approved the changes, detailed 
below, which officers will closely monitor and review if further action is required: 

a. Service 114 – Alkrington – Moston – Manchester: Route changed to 
operate via route currently provided by the commercial 88 service; 

b. Service 112 – Manchester – Collyhurst – Moston – Middleton: 
Frequency is amended to run every 15 minutes; 

c. Service 181/182 – Manchester – Chadderton – Shaw: Early morning trips 
introduced on 182 and one evening trip withdrawn on service 181; 

d. Service 467 – Bury – Daniel Fold – Rochdale: Additional morning trips are 
introduced; and 

e. Service 468 – Bury – Cutgate – Rochdale: Additional morning trips are 
being introduced. 

TfGM Performance reporting – Metrolink Services
The Mayor of Greater Manchester, Andy Burnham, has recently taken steps to 
ensure that reports on Metrolink’s performance are published at least monthly as 
part of a new drive to improve the passenger experience.

The performance reports will provide statistics on performance across the Metrolink 

Page 50

Agenda Item 8b



network - including punctuality and cancellations - and will give the public a means 
of monitoring service standards on an on-going basis. 

An initial report examining the overhead line issues which affected thousands of 
passengers on 19th and 20th February have also been published on TfGM’s web 
site. This report looked at the incident, the operational response, customer 
communication and what steps can be taken to reduce the risk of similar events in 
the future.

Following shortcomings identified with communications on the day, the Mayor 
asked TfGM and Metrolink operator, KeolisAmey Metrolink, to make immediate 
improvements to customer communications so that they are as quick and accurate 
as possible across all channels – including social media, websites, on-stop 
announcements and drivers/staff updating passengers on trams and stops.

The Mayor of Greater Manchester, Andy Burnham said: "The Metrolink system is a 
great asset to our city region and we should all be proud of it. However, it is not 
immune from technical problems, which at times have been serious breakdowns 
and which have not been handled as well as they might.

“Metrolink is accountable to its paying public and that is why I am introducing this 
new performance regime.”

Calder Valley Services
In May 2018 the current Clitheroe-Victoria and Blackburn-Victoria services will 
extend to and terminate at Rochdale after calling at Moston, Mills Hill and Castleton 
resulting in an increase to six trains an hour to/from Rochdale compared to the 
current four. This will result in all of the services which currently travel east of 
Rochdale running fast between Victoria and Rochdale except for a few peak 
services. This will help in separating the local (Victoria - Rochdale) and longer 
distance (Rochdale and destinations further east) passenger movements therefore 
creating more space on train services for each group. The largest benefits will not 
be realised until new rolling stock is delivered later on this year but this is an 
important first step in delivering real and meaningful improvements to the route.

Bus Services Act 2017
The Bus Services Act allows Greater Manchester’s Mayor the power to change 
how the region's services are run. Currently Greater Manchester’s bus market is 
deregulated, with around 80 per cent of services provided by private firms. Councils 
and TfGM previously had no say over how they were run. Private bus operators like 
First and Stagecoach set their own routes, frequencies, timetables, fares, and 
standards for most services. In all 22 operators run 440 services across the region, 
with 140 types of tickets available.

All buses could be the same colour, just like they were 30 years ago, with 
streamlined fares that have no extra charges if you need to travel with more than 
one operator in a journey. Simplified fares with a cap to stop you over-paying in one 
day will be introduced. Routes should in future be based on demand for services 
rather than on profit margins. The Act should allow for more integrated transport 
systems so that tram, train and bus timetables all match up which have consistent 
standards across the board. There will be one centralised point for complaints - or 
for the reciept of praise. There should also be transparency on exactly how the 

Page 51



annual £100m taxpayer spend on buses is spent.

The services will be offered by a franchised system, as currently is the case in 
Greater London. Greater Manchester authorities would thus take control of bus 
planning, with services run under contract by private operators.

It should be noted that buses account for 79% of all public transport journeys in 
Greater Manchester – around 210 million a year.

However, despite a growing population and increased demand on the transport 
network, bus patronage in Greater Manchester has fallen by over 140 million 
passenger journeys in the last 30 years.

Congestion Deal
Andy Burnham, the GM  Mayor has announced details of a ‘Congestion Deal’, This 
is a new approach to tackling congestion, where public bodies and operators will be 
challenged to offer people more choice in their travel options and employers, 
residents and commuters are incentivised to change their travel behaviour.

The new measures being announced include:
a. £80m investment in Metrolink trams, providing 4,800 extra spaces and 

increasing capacity on the busiest lines;
b. £160m investment in cycling and walking infrastructure – giving thousands of 

people the potential to move around without reliance on private car use;
c. Incentives for employers to introduce flexible start and finish times for their 

workforce through the potential introduction of an early bird ‘pre-peak’ 
ticket offer on Metrolink, as well as a potential group Metrolink discount 
for businesses that agree to implement flexible working;

d. An exploration of a High Occupancy Vehicle lane pilot, to give priority to cars 
with three or more passengers, to encourage more car sharing;

e. An expanded transport control centre operating 24 hours a day to help 
improve the flow of people and goods around Greater Manchester, and 
provide real-time information to the public

 
The Congestion Deal follows the Mayor’s Congestion Conversation last autumn, 
which over 7,000 members of the public responded to.

Councillor Phil Burke
Councillor Shakil Ahmed
Councillor Pat Sullivan

Transport for Greater Manchester Committee

Page 52



1 

 

4A 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED 

AUTHORITY, HELD ON FRIDAY 26 JANUARY 2018 
AT THE GMPF OFFICES, DROYLESDEN, TAMESIDE 

 
 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Greater Manchester Mayor  Andy Burnham (Chair) 
Deputy Mayor    Beverley Hughes 
(Police and Crime) 
Bolton       Councillor Linda Thomas 
Bury     Councillor Rishi Shori 
Manchester     Councillor Richard Leese (Deputy Mayor) 
Oldham     Councillor Jean Stretton 
Rochdale     Councillor Allen Brett 
Salford     Councillor John Merry 
Stockport     Councillor Alex Ganotis 
Tameside     Councillor John Taylor 
Trafford     Councillor Sean Anstee 
Wigan      Councillor Peter Smith 
 
OTHER MEMBERS IN ATTENDENCE: 
 
Fire Committee, Chair   Councillor David Acton 
GMWDA, Chair    Councillor Nigel Murphy 
Bolton     Councillor Anne-Marie Watters 
Bury       Councillor Jane Black 
Bury       Councillor Andrea Simpson 
Manchester     Councillor Angeliki Stogia 
Stockport     Councillor Wendy Wild 
Tameside     Councillor Lynn Travis 
Tameside     Councillor Brenda Warrington 
Trafford     Councillor Dylan Butt 
Trafford     Councillor Laura Evans 
Wigan       Councillor Jennifer Bullen  
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDENCE: 
 
GMCA Chief Executive  Eamonn Boylan 
GMCA – Deputy Chief Executive Andrew Lightfoot 
GMCA – Monitoring Officer  Liz Treacy 
GMCA – Treasurer   Richard Paver 
Office of the GM Mayor  Kevin Lee 
Bolton      Tony Oakman 

Page 53

Agenda Item 9



2 

 

Bury      Pat Jones Greenhalgh 
Manchester     Joanne Roney 
Oldham     Helen Lockwood  
Rochdale     Steve Rumbelow 
Salford     Jim Taylor 
Stockport     Pam Smith  
Tameside     Steven Pleasant 
Tameside    Sandra Stewart 
Trafford     Theresa Grant 
Wigan      Donna Hall  
TfGM      Simon Warburton  
TfGM     Steve Warrener 
Manchester Growth Co  Mark Hughes 
GMCA      Julie Connor 
GMCA     Lindsay Dunn 
GMCA     Simon Nokes 
GMCA      Nicola Ward  
    
 
GMCA 01/18 APOLOGIES  
 
Apologies for absence were received and noted from City Mayor Paul Dennett 
(Salford Council – Councillor John Merry attended), Carolyn Wilkins (Oldham Council 
– Helen Lockwood attended), Dawn Docx (Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue), 
John Rouse (GM Health and Social Care Partnership), John Lamonte (Transport for 
Greater Manchester – Steve Warrener attended) and Ian Hopkins (Greater 
Manchester Police). 
 
 
GMCA 02/18 CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
1. Post Arena Attack Cost Recovery 
 
The GM Mayor reported that the full cost to Greater Manchester following the arena 
attack as reported to Government was £28m, and that he had received a letter from 
the Prime Minister this week confirming that £24m would be reimbursed.  The 
Government have indicated that they will not fully fund the cost of the ‘We love 
Manchester’ fund, or the cost of the Independent Review led by Lord Kerslake.  The 
Mayor offered to pursue these negotiations privately, and commented that this 
review was not simply a local review, but that it had looked at national policy and 
guidance and would have a much wider impact. 
 
2. Levels of Rough Sleeping and Homelessness 
 
The Mayor of Greater Manchester confirmed that there had been a significant rise in 
homelessness across GM, with an increase of 20% in the city centre, and 40% in 
outlying boroughs. 

Page 54



3 

 

 
He reported that this was a significant increase from reducing levels of the last 
decade, and that GM would continue to push forward their efforts to tackle these 
issues.  A meeting of the Homelessness Action Network is scheduled for 15 February, 
where a number of organisations will be brought together to sign off a plan to tackle 
homelessness across the whole of GM.  Efforts were also being made to increase the 
number of Housing First schemes to 500 places by the end of the year, which would 
be a major contributor towards reaching GM’s goal of ending rough sleeping by 
2020. 
 
Richard Leese, Manchester City Council commented that this was a shared objective 
for all members of the GMCA, and that there the scale of the problem could be 
underestimated.  He reported that Manchester Council’s budget for 2017/18 had 
increased its funding to services to prevent homelessness and the capacity to 
manage increased numbers of people in temporary and permanent accommodation.  
Working with partner organisations, there have been more staff and volunteers on 
the streets of the city centre talking to people who are homeless and offering them a 
range of support services.  However, he expressed concern that despite these 
increased levels of intervention, the issue of homelessness was still getting worse.  
He added that within the Local Government settlement, the provision for housing, 
affordable housing and tackling homelessness was not sufficient.  It was estimated 
that Manchester City Council will have to provide 5 times the amount provided in 
the settlement to support the growing problem through 2018/19. 
 
The Mayor summarised that although the issue nationally and locally was getting 
worse, Greater Manchester’s response has improved and was continually looking for 
further ways to improve.  There have been new winter arrangements put in place for 
when temperatures drop below zero degrees, five hundred people have been able to 
register with a GP following the removal of the requirement to have a fixed address 
and local authorities have been able to waive the cost of providing copies of birth 
certificates which has helped people to access jobs and benefits.  Furthermore, there 
have been 200 referrals to the Housing First scheme and additional measures 
planned to be put in place by the end of the year. 
 
He added that public concern regarding the issue of homelessness was growing, and 
urged that there needs to be a Government review of Universal Credit and its impact 
on people being able to afford rent.  It was important that as a society we need to 
provide a better response, and that homelessness needs to stay on the top of the list 
of priorities.   
 
GMCA 03/18  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest made by any member of the GMCA in relation 
to items on the agenda. 
 
 
 

Page 55



4 

 

GMCA 04/18 MINUTES OF THE GMCA MEETING HELD ON 15 DECEMBER 2017  
 
The minutes of the GMCA meeting held 15 December 2017 were submitted for 
consideration.  
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the minutes of the GMCA meeting held on 15 December 2017 be approved as a 
correct record. 
 
GMCA 05/18 MINUTES OF THE GMCA RESOURCES COMMITTEE HELD ON THE 15 

DECEMBER 2017 
 
The minutes of the GMCA Resources Committee were submitted for consideration. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the minutes of the GMCA Resources Committee held on the 15 December 2017 
be approved as a correct record. 
 
GMCA 06/18 MINUTES OF THE GMCA ECONOMY, BUSINESS GROWTH AND SKILLS 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the minutes of the GMCA Economy, Business Growth and Skills Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees held on the 8 December 2017 and 19 January 2018 be noted. 
 
GMCA 07/18 MINUTES OF THE GMCA CORPORATE ISSUES AND REFORM 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the minutes of the GMCA Corporate Issues and Reform Overview and 

Scrutiny Committees held on the 19 December 2017 and the 16 January 2018 be 
noted. 
 

2. That the appointment of Cllr Debbie Newall (Bolton) to the Corporate Issues and 
Reform Overview and Scrutiny Committee be approved. 

GMCA 08/18 MINUTES OF THE GMCA CORPORATE ISSUES AND REFORM 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the GMCA Housing, Planning and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees held on the 13 December 2017 and 15 January 2018 be noted. 

Page 56



5 

 

GMCA 09/18 MINUTES OF THE GM LEP HELD ON THE 15 JANUARY 2018 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the minutes of the GM LEP held on the 15 January 2018 be noted. 
 
GMCA 09/18 MINUTES OF THE TRANSPORT FOR THE GREATER MANCHESTER 

COMMITTEE HELD ON THE 12 JANUARY 2018 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the minutes of the Transport for Greater Manchester held on the 12 January 
2018 be noted. 
 
GMCA 10/17 GMCA MAYORAL GENERAL BUDGET OVERVIEW REPORT 
 
The Mayor of Greater Manchester presented a report which set out the background 
to the GMCA General Budget, Transport Levy Budget and Mayoral General Budget 
and Capital Programme which were detailed in following agenda items.  He 
explained that these budgets were new territory for the GMCA but that they 
represented an opportunity for the GMCA to continue to move forward despite the 
pressures of Brexit. 
 
The Mayor introduced the background to HIS proposals for the policing precept, and 
explained that the police service have dealt with significant budget cuts over recent 
years.  The Deputy Mayor, Beverley Hughes further added that although the 
Government grant had not been increased, the settlement had given the Mayor the 
ability to increase the precept up to £12 per household in band D.  She reported that 
at their meeting on the 18 January, the Police and Crime Panel accepted the 
proposed precept amount, within the context of £12m savings, and a shortfall of 
£11m in the policing budget.  These additional funds would also be specifically used 
to recruit 50 additional police officers, accelerate improvements in customer services 
and maintain the community safety grant scheme for local authorities.  The 
commitment of Greater Manchester Police to community policing was recognised as 
commendable despite the pressures they were under. 
 
Members commented that they accept that the Mayor had have no choice but to 
accept the precept proposals as the funding from Central Government was not 
sufficient to support the required services.  However, it was important that the 
message be conveyed back to Government that this was not a sustainable method of 
funding the shortfall. 
 
Members further added that although the settlement gives the power for the Mayor 
to determine the precept, it does not give him complete freedom to raise the 
money.  Increasing Council Tax results in the lowest income families being hit by 
unfair increases.  It is therefore imperative that the GMCA demonstrate what this 
additional funding really means for communities. 

Page 57



6 

 

 
It was suggested that alongside this, that the Police need to continue to reform and 
look to find ways of ensuring effective and efficient use of their budget allocations. 
 
The Mayor summarised that the precept needs clear agreement and demonstration 
as to what it will specifically fund and how all communities will see real benefits from 
increased police presence, a stronger frontline and improvements to the 101 service.  
He further suggested that the Chief Constable be invited to the next meeting of the 
GMCA to set out his plans for the utilisation of the 2018/19 precept. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the GMCA notes the process for considering the proposals submitted by 

the Mayor for his General Budget, precept and capital budget.  
 

2. That it be noted that that final information underpinning the calculation of the 
Mayoral General budget and precept is not available for the meeting and that a 
further budget meeting has been arranged for 20 February 2018 to give 
consideration to the final proposals ahead of the Mayor formally determining his 
budget and precept in time for District Councils to start setting their Council Tax 
levels. 

 
3. That the Chief Constable be invited to the March meeting of the GMCA to set 

out his plans for the utilisation of the 2018/19 precept in relation to policing. 
 
GMCA 11/18 GMCA MAYORAL GENERAL BUDGET 2018/19 
 
The GM Mayor introduced a report which set out his proposals for the Mayoral 
General Budget and precept for 2018-19 which included a number of elements 
including the fire service budget.  The Mayoral element of the precept would include 
the provision of funding to support GM to improve its efforts on congestion 
planning, regeneration and the use of mayoral powers and the review of the GM 
Spatial Framework. 
 
The Deputy Mayor, Beverley Hughes added that this precept would further give the 
budget headroom to undertake a comprehensive review of the Fire Service 
arrangements. 
 
A member asked why there was specific provision for the Mayor to award grants to 
Local Authorities when they are able to apply for them directly.  Officers confirmed 
that this allocation would allow the Mayor to award grants in respect of his mayoral 
priorities for specific pieces of work that could only be delivered through Local 
Authorities. 
 
Members further added that the Mayor’s Office should be of no additional cost to 
the Local Authorities and that communication should be clear that this funding is 
currently raised through a levy but is now more transparent through the precept 

Page 58



7 

 

arrangements.  Another member added that although this is a more open and 
transparent way of dealing with budgets, that residents will naturally concentrate on 
the overall increase and therefore clear demonstration of its benefits to 
communities on a day to day basis and ultimately improve communities and reduce 
living costs. 
 
The Mayor summarised that he agreed that the value added to the lives of residents 
through the creation of the mayoral arrangements and the powers brought to 
Greater Manchester needs to be effectively communicated through the budget 
proposals and going forward. 
 
Richard Leese, Deputy Mayor took the Chair at this point in the meeting and he 
informed members that there had been a series of additional recommendations 
circulated as the statutory calculations could not be completed until the final figures 
on tax bases and government grants had been received.  At their meeting on the 20 
February 2018 the GMCA would be invited to sign off the final budget. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the proposal presented by the Mayor to set an overall Mayoral General 

Precept of £68.95 (Band D) comprising of £59.95 for functions previously 
covered by the Fire and Rescue Authority precept (no change) and £9.00 for 
other Mayoral General functions be approved in principle and the detailed 
budget calculations which support that level of precept be noted. 

 

2. That it be noted that the proposal for the Mayoral General Precept for 2018/19 
is the start of a 2-3 year strategy for setting the Mayoral precept baseline which 
will be adjusted in future years as further Mayoral functions are granted. 

 

3. That the proposal to allow £11.5 million of Earnback grant to be used to support 
GMCA costs relating to bus reform be noted. 

 

4. That the following items be noted: 
 
i. detailed budget proposed for the Fire and Rescue Service 

ii. the use of the reserves, to support the revenue and capital budgets and the 
assessment by the Treasurer that the reserves as at March 2019 are 
adequate 

iii. the proposed capital programme and proposals for funding 
iv. the 2019-20 medium term financial position which reflects the final year of 

the 4 year funding settlement set by Central Government 
 

5. That the detailed budget proposals for other Mayoral functions be noted. 
 

6. That the GMCA does not wish to submit any written comments to the Mayor in 
line with the legal process and timetable described in this report. 

Page 59



8 

 

 
7. That it be noted that the draft budget does not include all the required statutory 

calculations under the Local Government Finance Act 1992, since various 
relevant information has not yet been provided to the Mayor by the 
Government and some billing authorities, including full information relating to 
the revenue support grant, tax bases, collection funds and various business rate 
information. 
 

8. That it be recommended that the Mayor notifies the GMCA of the revised 
statutory calculations by no later than 15 February 2018 with a view to the 
GMCA making its final determination at a meeting on the 20 February 2018. 

 
GMCA 12/18 REVENUE TRANSPORT BUDGET 2018/19 
 
The Mayor of Greater Manchester took members through a report which set out the 
transport related GMCA budget for 2018/19 which remains high on the mayoral 
agenda.  He added that there would be a review of internal expenditure to ensure 
the greatest efficiencies within TfGM. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the issues affecting the 2018/19 transport budgets as detailed in the report 

be noted. 
 
2. That the proposal for the introduction of an annual charge of £12 for access to 

the Local Concessionary Scheme be not approved. 
 
3. That the consultation process which has been undertaken by officers with the 

Transport Levy Scrutiny Panel be noted; the proposals recommended by Scrutiny 
as set out in this report, other than the proposal noted at recommendation 2 
above, be agreed. That it be noted that the proposal is now for a total levy for 
2018/19 of £196.373 million, plus a one-off adjustment of £87.98 million in 
relation to a refund from districts of transport reserves which were refunded to 
them in 2017/18, less a reduction of £3.9 million in relation to the costs to be 
met from the Mayoral General budget to take the levy to be charged to 
£280.453 million. 

 
4. That the GMCA budget relating to transport functions funded through the levy 

as set out in the report and amended in line with recommendation 2, for 
2018/19 be approved. 

 

5. That it be noted that the planned increases of around 1.8% and 1.57% with 
respect to the Greater Manchester Transport Fund will be deferred. 

 
6. That the Transport Levy on the district councils in 2018/19 of £280.453 million 

as detailed above, apportioned on the basis of mid-year population as at June 
2016 be approved. 

Page 60



9 

 

 
7. That the use of £11.5 million of Earnback revenue grant for use on GMCA 

transport functions be approved. 
 
8. That the use of reserves in 2018/19 as detailed in section 5 be approved. 
 
9. That the position on reserves as identified in the report be noted and approved. 
 
GMCA 13/18 GMCA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND REVENUE BUDGET 2018/19  
 
The Mayor of Greater Manchester set out the economic development elements 
related to the GMCA budget for 2018/19.  He highlighted issues for members to 
consider including the grant to the GM Health and Social Care Partnership and 
funding for MIDAS and Marketing Manchester. 
 
Members suggested that the level of funding to MIDAS and Marketing Manchester 
be match funded by private sector contributions. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the budget relating to the GMCA Economic Development and Regeneration 

functions in 2018/19 as set out in section 2 of this report be approved. 
 
2. That the District Contributions of £8.848 million as set out in section 3 of this 

report be approved. 
 
3. That authority be delegated to the Chief Executive in consultation with the 

Portfolio Leader for Health and Social Care to determine the appropriate grant 
to the Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership of up to £0.6 
million. 

 
4. That the increases to the level of funding to MIDAS £0.2 million and Marketing 

Manchester £0.35 million, subject to confirmation that these additional sums 
are matched by private sector contributions be approved. 

 
5. That it be noted that £4.9 million of Business Rates Income is to be retained by 

District Councils and shared on a pro-rata population basis. 
 
GMCA 14/18 GMCA CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2018-21   
 
The Mayor of Greater Manchester presented an update in relation to the GMCA 
capital expenditure programme. 
 
Members asked whether there was further information available regarding the 
evaluation of the current numbers and planning increase of trams on the metrolink.  
The Mayor confirmed that it remained his intention to increase the number of trams, 
but that a case was being worked up that would be dependent on the availability of 

Page 61



10 

 

funding.  It was suggested that a report on the current patronage and planned 
purchase of additional trams be brought to a future meeting of the GMCA. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the revisions to the capital budget as set out in Appendix A and detailed 

within the report be agreed. 
 
2. That the updated 2017/18 capital forecast compared to the previous 2017/18 

capital forecast be noted. 
 
3. That the capital programme budget for 2018/19 and the forward commitments 

as detailed in the report and in Appendix A be approved. 
 
4. That it be noted that that the capital programme will be financed from a mixture 

of grants (including from DfT), external contributions and long term borrowings. 
 
5. That it be noted that provision has been made in the revenue budget for the 

associated financing costs of borrowing. 
 
6. That it be noted that that the capital programme will continue to be reviewed, 

with any new schemes which have not yet received specific approval added into 
the programme at a later date once approval has been sought.  

 
7. That it be noted that a revised capital programme and Treasury Management 

Strategy (including prudential indicators), will need to be submitted once the 
Greater Manchester Waste Disposal Authority joins the GMCA on the 1 April 
2018. 

 
8. That a report on the current patronage and planned purchase of additional 

trams for Metrolink be brought to a future meeting of the GMCA. 
 
GMCA 15/18 BREXIT MONITOR – MONTHLY UPDATE  
 
Councillor Richard Leese, Portfolio Leader for Business and Economy presented the 
Brexit report which updated members on the key economic and policy developments 
in relation to the UK’s decision to leave the EU.  He highlighted the recent debates 
regarding the potential for a second referendum and the ability for the public to 
determine whether the deal is acceptable. 
 
The Mayor summarised that the current position in relation to a second referendum 
was unclear but that there were local discussions as to how to ensure the best deal 
for Greater Manchester is sought from any potential deal. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the Brexit Monitor (January 2018) be noted. 

Page 62



11 

 

GMCA 16/18 INDUSTRIAL STRATEGY UPDATE 
 
Councillor Richard Leese, Portfolio Leader for Business and Economy introduced a 
report which updated members on the Government’s recent Industrial Strategy 
White Paper and the proposed approach to developing the Greater Manchester 
Local Industrial Strategy.  He urged that this was an opportunity for Greater 
Manchester to maximise the offer from Government to keep Greater Manchester 
distinctive through new ideas and innovation. 
 
Deputy Mayor, Beverley Hughes welcomed the report and planned approach and the 
ability to use this paper as a framework to develop a GM approach to Industrial 
Strategy.  She suggested that as most of Greater Manchester’s economic base comes 
from SMEs, that they would be integral to a localised strategy, which should also 
have a strong focus on how we support young people, and parents back into work.  
Any Industrial Strategy should also focus on the wider determinants of industry such 
as transport, housing and digital connectivity not just hardware infrastructure. 
 
The Mayor further added that this was a great opportunity for Greater Manchester 
to move forward quickly and set the pace across the country and a leading 
conurbation. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the approach outlined to developing the Greater Manchester Local 

Industrial Strategy be noted in particular that the approach does not separate 
our growth priorities from our people priorities. In addition that ‘infrastructure’ 
should not just include hardware it should also include other enabling 
infrastructure such as childcare as being key to supporting business growth, 
particularly SMEs. 
 

2. That the contents of the industrial strategy white paper of relevance to Greater 
Manchester be noted. 

 
GMCA 17/18 GREEN SUMMIT – MARCH 2018 
 
Alex Ganotis, Portfolio Leader for Green-City Region gave a verbal report regarding 
the planned Greater Manchester Green Summit to be held on 21 March at 
Manchester Central.  He reported that GM was starting from a strong position 
regarding its delivery against the targets for carbon reduction and climate change 
and that it was important to recognise how much had been achieved to date. 
 
The event has been designed to actively share the message of green issues across a 
wide sector of attendees regarding inclusion, economic development and 
sustainable business growth.  Greater Manchester have set a target date to be 
carbon neutral by 2050, but there is a strong desire to bring this forward and 
therefore the Green City Steering Group have been developing the policies that will 
enable this to be more achievable.  This policy development has been informed by a 

Page 63



12 

 

series of ‘listening sessions’ across the sub region which have discussed issues such 
as clean air, green space, waste avoidance and food economy. 
 
The Mayor thanked all those involved with the Green City Region work, and 
commented that this Green Summit will put GM on the map. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That arrangements for the planned Green Summit to be held on 21 March be noted 

and that local authorities and key stakeholders be encouraged to participate.  

 
GMCA 18/18 TOWN CENTRE CHALLENGE UPDATE 
 
The Mayor of Greater Manchester updated member of the Combined Authority on 
the Town Centre Challenge, and introduced a report which set out the next steps in 
the process.  He reiterated the importance that economic growth needs to be felt all 
across GM and this work was designed to galvanise new discussions as to how we 
can support the development of towns across all boroughs, and if successful then it 
would be extended to further widen its impact.  He urged those Local Authorities 
who were still to nominate a town to do so as soon as possible. 
 
John Taylor commented that Tameside’s nomination of Stalybridge is subject to 
cabinet approval shortly. 
 
Jean Stretton explained how Oldham Town Centre was currently going through a 
masterplan development and that the Council’s efforts were concentrating on this 
large scale project, and although they would not be submitting another town to the 
town centre challenge, that Oldham should not be disadvantaged in any way. 
 
Richard Leese commented that Manchester were in a similar position, where they 
did not want to submit a nomination for just one town but that they would engage 
with the programme for the whole city. 
 
Alex Ganotis added that Stockport had put forward their town centre so that the 
town centre challenge could support the work that was currently being undertaken 
in the hope that the Mayor could drive forward additional elements to the scheme 
such as the introduction of more housing options around the town centre and the 
Interchange. 
 
Allen Brett reported that Rochdale would soon be sending their nomination for the 
town centre challenge. 
 
Linda Thomas commented that Bolton town centre was also going through a major 
redevelopment programme, however the Council had decided to nominate 
Farnworth as the next town centre priority. 
 

Page 64



13 

 

The Mayor thanked members for their comments and reminded the GMCA that this 
programme aspired to give those current schemes the extra push they need to move 
forward and alongside this, raise the profile of towns outside of the city centre.  He 
gave assurance that no Local Authorities would be disadvantaged, and he would 
ensure that mayoral powers were available to those areas who required this 
intervention. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the issues set out in Sections 2 and 3 of this report and the town centres 

which have so far been put forward as part of the challenge be noted. 
 

2. That it be noted that Manchester’s nomination needs correction to reflect that 
they have a coherent approach to improving all of their local district centres, all 
of their centres being of equal importance and priority. It is within this context 
that they would want to work with the Mayor and GMCA to see if they can assist 
further. 

 

3. That it be noted that Oldham Town Centre is Oldham’s current strategic priority 
and they would seek a meeting with the Mayor to see if any of his new powers 
can assist to deliver their plans.  

 
GMCA 19/18 COMMISSIONING WORKING WELL (WORK & HEALTH PROGRAMME) 
 
Sean Anstee, Portfolio Leader for Skills, Employment and Apprenticeships shared a 
report which notified the Combined Authority of the procurement process of the 
£52m Working Well (Work & Health Programme) and provided an overview of the 
successful bidder’s proposed delivery model. 
 
The Mayor added that this has been a very successful initiative for Greater 
Manchester and had introduced a simper process than the previous Work 
Programme and its results should be celebrated.  He added that this work would 
support a case for GM to have much greater control over DWP (Department of Work 
and Pensions) budgets in future years. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the outcome of the Working Well (Work & Health Programme) 

procurement process and the winning bidder’s delivery model be noted. 
 
2. That the appreciation for Local Authority and partner support in the 

procurement process be noted. 
 
3. That the Social Value outcomes associated with the contract be noted. 
 

Page 65



14 

 

4. That the importance of Local Authorities and local governance to successful 
delivery and agree to support the implementation process through Local 
Integration Boards be noted. 

 
GMCA 20/18 GM GROWTH DEAL – SALFORD BOLTON NETWORK IMPROVEMENT 

PROGRAMME 
 
The Mayor of Greater Manchester introduced a report which sought full approval 
from the Combined Authority to release the necessary funding to enable the delivery 
of the Salford Bolton Network Improvements (SBIN) and to allow the progression of 
wider TfGM project and programme management activities associated with this 
programme.   
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That full approval be granted for the Salford Bolton Network Improvements - 

Bolton Delivery Package 4 (Farnworth) scheme; and grant release of funding of 
£1.676 million from the Local Growth Deal to enable delivery of the works; and 

 
2. That the release of further funding of £0.192 million to facilitate TfGM project 

and programme management activities associated with the enabling, 
development and delivery of the Bolton and Salford SBNI packages be granted. 

 
GMCA 21/18 INTERMEDIATE BODY STATUS FOR GREATER MANCHESTER – 

DELEGATIONS 
 
The Mayor of Greater Manchester presented a report which sought the agreement 
from the GMCA to delegate the responsibility for ratification of Intermediate Body 
decisions on the strategic fit of ERDF applications to the Chief Executive of the GMCA 
in consultation with the Mayor.  In doing so, this will ensure that there are no 
perceived conflicts of interest if GMCA members have a governance relationship 
with potential applicants.  It will also ensure there is no conflict with the fact that 
five GMCA members are on the GM ESIF sub-committee, so GMCA members do not 
have to make decisions twice.  Finally, the role of the GMCA is only to ratify the 
recommendations of the ESIF sub-committee and delegation of this ratification 
would mean the ratification would not be required to be undertaken at meetings of 
the GMCA. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That it be agreed to delegate the responsibility for ratification of GMCA Intermediate 
Body decisions on the strategic fit of ERDF applications based upon the 
recommendations of the GM ESIF Sub-Committee to the Chief Executive of GMCA in 
consultation with the Greater Manchester Mayor. 
 
 
 

Page 66



15 

 

GMCA 22/18 GM INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK PROJECT UPDATES 
 
The Mayor of Greater Manchester introduced a report which sought approval from 
the GMCA for investments to GPL Group Limited and Calamity Island Limited from 
recycled funds. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That discussions on this item be moved into Part B of the agenda. 
 
GMCA 23/18 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That, under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the press and 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on business on the 
grounds that this involves the likely disclosure of exempt information, as set out in 
paragraph 3, Part 1, Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 and that the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information. 
 
 
GMCA 24/18 GMCA CULTURAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT FUND - RECOMENDATIONS 
 
Councillor Linda Thomas, Portfolio Leader for Culture, Arts and Leisure introduced 
the report which sought approval on the process to identify organisations to be 
funded via the new GMCA Cultural and Social Impact Fund. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That it be agreed that the budget for the GMCA Cultural and Social Impact Fund 

should be allocated at a level to fund the balanced portfolio including existing 
S48 organisations and the highest scoring applicants for the GMCA Cultural Fund 
detailed within this report.  

 
2. That it be agreed that GMCVO should be funded to the level they were funded 

under Section 48 and this funding should be taken from the GMCA Cultural and 
Social Impact Fund.  

  
3. That it be noted that the conclusion of the equality impact assessment on the 

GMCA Cultural and Social Impact Fund 
 
4. That it be agreed that the portfolio and programme management costs should 

be found from within the GMCA Cultural and Social Impact Fund budget.  
 

5. That it be agreed that this report is made public within two months of this 
meeting. 

Page 67



16 

 

GMCA 25/18 GMCA LOCAL FULL FIBRE CHALLENGE FUND PROPOSAL 
 
Councillor Sean Anstee, Portfolio Leader for Digital City Region introduced a report 
which sought the agreement of the GMCA to the approach to Greater Manchester’s 
bid to the Full Fibre Networks Challenge Fund as part of the GM Digital Infrastructure 
Implementation Plan.  
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That it be agreed to submit a bid for funding under the DCMS Local Full Fibre 

Network Challenge Fund under Wave Two.  
 
2. That the GM Digital Infrastructure Implementation Plan which sets the 

framework to create the best possible environment for market investment in 
digital infrastructure be approved. 

 
3. That the development of a co-ordinated approach across GM to the 

development of standardised wayleaves, supportive planning policy, consistent 
regulation and a “one dig” approach, in order to encourage market investment 
in digital fibre infrastructure, reporting back to GMCA in early summer 2018 be 
supported. 

 
GMCA 26/18 GM INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK AND CONDITIONAL PROJECT 

APPROVAL 
 
Eamonn Boylan, Chief Executive of the GMCA shared a report which provided further 
detail on the funding applications from GPL Limited and Calamity Island Limited. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the funding application by Calamity Island Limited (investment of £210k) be 

given conditional approval and progress to due diligence. 

 

2. That it be agreed to delegate authority to the Combined Authority Treasurer and 
Combined Authority Monitoring Officer to review the due diligence information 
and, subject to their satisfactory review and agreement of the due diligence 
information and overall detailed commercial terms of the transactions, to sign 
off any outstanding conditions, issue final approvals and complete any necessary 
related documentation in respect of the loan at recommendation 1 above. 

 

 3. That the funding application by GPL Group Ltd (investment of up to £1,500k) be 
agreed in principle and progress to due diligence.  

 
4.  That it be agreed to delegate authority to the Combined Authority Treasurer and 

Combined Authority Monitoring Officer to review the due diligence information 
in consultation with the Mayor and Deputy Mayor of the GMCA and, subject to 

Page 68



17 

 

their satisfactory review and agreement of the due diligence information and 
overall detailed commercial terms of the transactions, to sign off any 
outstanding conditions, issue final approvals and complete any necessary 
related documentation in respect of the loan at recommendation 2 above.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 69



18 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 70



1 

 

4 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED 

AUTHORITY, HELD ON FRIDAY 23 FEBRUARY 2018 
AT WIGAN TOWN HALL. 

 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Greater Manchester Mayor  Andy Burnham 
Deputy Mayor    Baronness Beverley Hughes 
(Police and Crime) 
Bolton      Councillor Linda Thomas 
Bury      Councillor Eamonn O’Brien 
Manchester     Councillor Richard Leese, (Deputy Mayor) 
Rochdale     Councillor Allen Brett 
Salford     City Mayor Paul Dennett 
Stockport     Councillor Alex Ganotis 
Tameside     Councillor Brenda Warrington 
Trafford     Councillor Sean Anstee 
Wigan      Councillor Peter Smith 
 
OTHER MEMBERS IN ATTENDENCE: 
 
Fire Committee, Chair   Councillor David Acton 
GMWDA, Chair    Councillor Nigel Murphy 
TfGMC     Councillor Guy Harkin 
Bolton     Councillor Anne-Marie Watters 
Manchester     Councillor Angelicki Stogia 
Rochdale    Councillor Sara Rowbotham 
Salford     Councillor Paula Boshell 
Stockport     Councillor Wendy Wild 
Tameside     Councillor Lynn Travis 
Trafford     Councillor Dylan Butt 
Wigan       Councillor Jennifer Bullen  
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDENCE: 
 
GMCA Chief Executive  Eamonn Boylan 
GMCA – Monitoring Officer  Liz Treacy 
GMCA – Treasurer   Richard Paver 
Office of the GM Mayor  Kevin Lee 
Bolton      Tony Oakman 
Bury      Pat Jones Greenhalgh 
Rochdale     Steve Rumbelow 
Salford     Ben Dolan 
Stockport     Pam Smith  

Page 71



2 

 

Tameside     Steven Pleasant 
Trafford     Theresa Grant 
Wigan      Donna Hall  
TfGM     Amy Harhoff 
GMFRS     Dawn Docx 
GMCA     Simon Nokes 
GMCA     Sylvia Welsh 
GMCA      Nicola Ward    
 
GMCA 33/18 APOLOGIES  
 
Apologies for absence were received and noted from Councillor Rishi Shori (Bury – 
Councillor O’Brien attending), Councillor Jean Stretton (Oldham), Councillor A 
Simpson (Bury), Councillor Laura Evans (Trafford), Councillor Andrew Fender 
(TfGMC), Joanne Roney (Manchester), Carolyn Wilkins (Oldham), Jon Lamonte 
(TfGM) and Jon Rouse (GMHSCP). 
 
GMCA 34/18 CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
1. Condolences 
 
The GM Mayor expressed his condolences to the families of Councillor Sheila 
Newman and Councillor Sue Dearden who had recently passed away. 
 
GMCA 35/18  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest made by any member of the GMCA in relation 
to items on the agenda. 
 
GMCA 36/18 MINUTES OF THE GMCA MEETINGS HELD ON 26 JANUARY 2018 AND 

20 FEBRURAY 2018.  
 
The minutes of the GMCA meetings held 26 January 2018 and 20 February 2018 
were submitted for consideration.  
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the minutes of the GMCA meetings held on 26 January 2018 and 20 February 
2018 be approved as a correct record. 
 
GMCA 37/18 MINUTES OF THE GMCA ECONOMY, BUSINESS GROWTH AND SKILLS 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the minutes of the GMCA Economy, Business Growth and Skills Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on the 9 February 2018 be noted. 

Page 72



3 

 

GMCA 38/18 MINUTES OF THE GMCA CORPORATE ISSUES AND REFORM 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the minutes of the GMCA Corporate Issues and Reform Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on the 20 February 2018 be noted. 
 
GMCA 39/18 MINUTES OF THE GMCA HOUSING, PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the minutes of the GMCA Housing, Planning and Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on the 15 February 2018 be noted. 
 
GMCA 40/18 CARE 2020 
 
This item was withdrawn from the agenda at the request of the Chair. 
 
GMCA 41/18 GM HOUSING DEAL 
 
Salford’s City Mayor Paul Dennett introduced a report which described the ongoing 
conversations with Government regarding a Housing Deal for GM and sought 
permission from the GMCA to delegate authority to the GMCA Chief Executive, in 
consultation with the Portfolio Lead and Lead Chief Executive for Housing, Planning 
& Homelessness to agree a deal, if necessary, ahead of the next meeting of the 
GMCA.   He proposed an amendment to the recommendation contained within the 
report to include the addition of the GM Mayor be added to the delegation. 
 
The GM Mayor added that Government was keen to conclude the Housing Deal in 
the next few weeks, notwithstanding that the deal does need to be the right deal for 
GM adding that the detail of the Housing Deal it was crucial to preparing the GM 
Spatial Framework.  He further thanked Paul Dennett for all his work to date in 
progressing the proposed deal. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That authority be delegated to the Chief Executive of the GMCA, in consultation with 
the GM Mayor, City Mayor Paul Dennett (Portfolio Lead) and Steve Rumbelow (Lead 
Chief Executive) of Housing, Planning and Homelessness to agree a Housing Deal 
with Government (if necessary) ahead of the next meeting of the GMCA. 
 
 
 
 

Page 73



4 

 

GMCA 42/18 GROWTH DEAL – WIGAN A49 LINK ROAD REQUEST FOR FULL 
APPROVAL AND FUNDING 

 
The GM Mayor introduced a report which sought full approval and the release of 
necessary funding to enable the delivery of the Wigan A49 Link Road.  He reported 
that the west-east connectivity across Wigan was required to improve journey times 
and productivity and emphasised the strategic importance of this scheme in 
preparing for future schemes. 
 
Councillor Peter Smith, Leader of Wigan Council, expressed his appreciation to the 
GMCA for their support regarding this project which has been ongoing for some 
time. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That Full Grant Approval for the Wigan A49 Link Road and the associated release of 
the remaining £9.226m, of the total £10.295m, of funding from the Local Growth 
Deal budget to enable the delivery of the scheme be approved. 
 
GMCA 43/18 BREXIT MONITOR – FEBRUARY UPDATE 
 
Councillor Richard Leese, Deputy Mayor and GMCA Portfolio Lead for Business and 
Economy introduced a report providing members with an update on the key 
economic and policy development in relation to the UKs decision to leave the 
European Union.  He took members through the latest Brexit Monitor report which 
described ongoing national discussions and detailed the level of impact anticipated 
for the North West economy.  GM were also undertaking their own Impact 
Assessment over the forthcoming weeks on all Brexit scenarios.   
 
He also highlighted the importance of rebalancing the economy outside of the South 
East of England, suggesting that work around the skills agenda was key to support 
GM could quickly build some resilience against the outcomes of Brexit.  In order for 
this to happen, the pace of progression must increase through further conversations 
with Government regarding the devolution of skills funding and the development of 
a Local Industrial Strategy. 
 
The GM Mayor added that the UK were now entering into a serious phase of 
discussions which would shape any future deal that it was unacceptable that GM still 
does not have a permanent seat at the Brexit negotiations, where difficult trade-offs 
may be made between different sectors of the economy.  He also stressed that the 
situation cannot continue and it was too important to the GM Economy. 
 
In a recent meeting the Brexit Secretary provided assurance that an analysis of what 
Brexit scenarios might mean for regional and GM economy had not been 
undertaken, however, a recent article had appeared in the media a few weeks ago 
which looked like regional analysis. 
 

Page 74



5 

 

Councillor Richard Leese confirmed that such representations would be made to the 
Brexit Select Committee on the 19 March 2018. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the Brexit Monitor for February 2018 be noted. 
 
2. That it be noted that a submission would be made to the Brexit Select 

Committee, due to meet in Manchester on 19 March 2018, regarding 
permanent representation of GM in the Brexit negotiations. 

 
GMCA 44/18 GREATER MANCHESTER AGE FRIENDLY HUB STRATEGY  
 
The GM Mayor introduced a report, on behalf of Councillor Jean Stretton, which 
sought the approval of the Greater Manchester Age Friendly Strategy.  He also 
expressed his appreciation to Councillor Jean Stretton for all the work undertaken to 
develop an excellent document, which supports GM to be at the forefront of the 
active ageing discussion which advances systems and services for older people.    
 
He commented that this was an ambitious strategy, which enabled the breakdown of 
silos between the different public services and asks those service to work as one 
team to support older people to live the life they want to lead. 
 
He also highlighted a number of issues, including: 
 

 The eight dementia friendly communities established in Wigan were also 
highlighted, where much of the thinking in the Strategy was underway; 
working with the voluntary sector in a different way via Wigan Deal.  A 
further example of work in Levenshulme, Manchester was also highlighted 
whereby local businesses had advertised that older people were welcome to 
use their facilities when they were out and about. 

 

 An age friendly Health & Social Care system was integral, with GM already 
ahead of the rest of the country in terms of health and care and integration 
and dialogue will continue with Government to develop thinking focused on 
wrap around care for older people covering physical, mental and social 
needs.  GM is uniquely well placed to put forward a new vision for a 21st 
century NHS, which doesn’t see hospitals as the default setting for medical 
care, more on a person centred, health promotion modal centred approach 
to support people in their own home. 

 

 Increased housing choice, to promote social connections and wellbeing in 
later life.  A successful Housing Deal with Government may provide capacity 
to rethink how GM provides better housing for older people in communities.  
The town centre challenge may be an avenue to provide more supported 
living for older people within town centres.  Links between health and 
housing does need to be developed moving forward. 

Page 75



6 

 

 

 A transport network to support older people, to be addressed via bus reform, 
with easy access, including physical and sensory adaptations to enable all 
members of the community to access buses. 
 

 A world leader in research and innovation, the University of Salford, as an 
institute for dementia, is undertaking work, not just in the treatment, but to 
support people to live well with dementia. 
 

 Increasing the rate of activity needs to be at the heart of plans for improving 
public health in GM, for all, especially older people and the establishment of 
a social prescribing system that would sign post people to walking groups in 
their communities, which will also tackle loneliness alongside social isolation. 

 
The Strategy would help GM to lead the debate. 
 
GM’s application to the World Health Organisation to become and age-friendly city 
has been accepted, with an announcement to be made over the forthcoming weeks. 
 
Members of the GMCA welcomed the Strategy, with initiatives already underway 
within local authorities to deliver some of its pledges and outcomes already 
beginning to be realised. 
 
Other members commented that the Strategy reflected the essence of Care 2020 
and recognised that social health issues such as loneliness were having a significant 
impact on people’s health and the health service and that such a programme was 
crucial to addressing these issues that were often overlooked.  The importance of 
principles underpinning the Strategy were highlighted. 
 
A member added that it was highly commendable to see GM setting the standard on 
this agenda, and that the language and values within the report were welcomed.  
However, they urged that the detail of the delivery plan needs to be reflective in the 
development of our own workforces to ensure the values were embedded. 
 
Members were advised that it was intended that a presentation on Health and Social 
Care Asset Based Working (Care 2020) would be submitted to a future meeting of 
the GMCA. 
 
Members commented that the Strategy needs effective resourcing to ensure that it 
can be delivered.  Particular concerns were raised in relation to the diluted 
employment standards within the social care sector, the under-value of carers, who 
need improved employment practices, and the inevitable increased pressure on the 
NHS if no action was to be taken. 
 

Page 76



7 

 

It was suggested that the development of the ‘safe and well visits’ by the Fire Service 
would underpin the Strategy.  The role of the community in addressing the issues of 
loneliness for older people was also an issue to be addressed. 
 
The GM Mayor summarised that this was a vital piece of work for an ageing 
population in GM, and that funding for social care would be the biggest challenge to 
the Strategy.  However, discussions with Government regarding Care 2020 vision 
would help support this, in addition to work being undertaken through NHS reform 
to review domiciliary care.  He added that the recent publication of the Carers 
Strategy helps to put older people at the centre of these discussions and national 
recognition had been given to the impact of loneliness and social isolation on 
people’s health and wellbeing.  The GMCA would be kept apprised of the progress of 
discussion with Government regarding the care 2020 proposition. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That thanks and appreciation to Councillor Jean Stretton (Portfolio Lead) be 

recorded recognising the work undertaken to develop the Strategy. 
  

2. That the GM Age Friendly Strategy be approved. 
 
3. That it be noted that GM’s application to the World Health Organisation to be 

recognised as an age-friendly city region has been accepted. 
 
4. That a presentation on Health & Social Care Asset Based Working (Care 2020) be 

submitted to a future meeting of the GMCA. 
 
5. That it be noted that the GMCA would be kept updated on the discussions 

underway with Government regarding GM’s Care 2020 proposition. 
 
GMCA 45/18 GREATER MANCHESTER INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY 
 
Councillor Sean Anstee, GMCA Portfolio Lead for Skills, Employment and 
Apprenticeships, introduced a report which updated members on GM’s approach to 
applying to the Department of Education’s £170m capital fund to develop an 
Institute of Technology (IoT) within GM.  Discussion have been ongoing with 
Department for Education for some time around the prototype of what this would 
mean for the City Region.  
 
He emphasised the need to be resilient in response to any changes as a result of 
Brexit, the need to ensure there was a skilled population, in particular at level 4 and 
5 qualifications where there was a gap across GM.  The creation of an IoT would be a 
complement to the current further and higher education institutions across GM as it 
would be able to offer further opportunities in the digital, construction, 
manufacturing and engineering sectors.  In developing the proposition other 
considerations to ensure the opportunities were available in GM would include a 
review of travel to learn patterns. 

Page 77



8 

 

 
The GMCA have prepared their outline proposal submission to phase one, and were 
seeking support to pursue the proposed application process with DfE.   A more 
detailed application would be submitted in Phase two if successful. 
 
Members welcomed the initiative albeit that the phase one application was an 
outline proposal and requested an assurance that there would be further be a 
opportunity to influence some of the important detail of the submission at the next 
stage of the application, including the location of the hub in localities.  It was 
confirmed that the GMCA would be consulted on the application, including the 
location of the hub in localities and the principles around learning to address the 
skills gap at level 4 and 5 to ensure that it offered support to all learners across GM. 
 
The GM Mayor summarised that GM would like to be one of the DFE areas for IoT  as 
this would further support the development of our local Industrial Strategy and 
ambitions.  This must be further supported by Government’s commitment to skills 
devolution in order for GM to develop a skills base necessary for these growth 
industries. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the application process be supported. 
 
2. That authority be delegated to the Chief Executive of the GMCA, in consultation 

with the GMCA Treasurer and Councillor Sean Anstee (Portfolio Lead) and 
Theresa Grant (Portfolio Lead Chief Executive) to agree the stage 1 application. 

 
3. That it be agreed that, in the event of a successful stage 1 application, the detail 

of the stage 2 application be submitted to the GMCA in advance of submission 
to the Department for Education. 

 
4. That it be agreed that in submitting the Stage 1 application, the GMCA demand 

from Government greater control of all aspects OF skills post 16, not just adult 
skills, and an urgent review of the operation of the apprenticeship Levy. 

 
5. That thanks and appreciation to Councillor Sean Anstee and Theresa Grant be 

recorded for progressing the Institute of Technology proposition. 
 
GMCA 46/18 GREATER MANCHESTER DIGITAL STRATEGY  
 
Councillor Sean Anstee, Portfolio Leader for Skills, Employment and Apprenticeships, 
presented a report which sought the agreement of the GMCA on the Greater 
Manchester Digital Strategy, which was linked to the Skills Strategy. 
 
He reported that GM had held a number of digital summits throughout the year and 
had listened to providers and stakeholders on how GM could differentiate itself in 

Page 78



9 

 

the digital market through effective targets and measures and the required 
infrastructures to support and deliver these ambitions. 
 
The GM Mayor thanked the steering groups for their involvement in developing the 
GM Digital Strategy, and commented that through higher levels of engagement with 
industry representatives there had been a greater degree of ownership in the co-
production of the Strategy.  Being a leading digital city, with a difference, was a 
major part of GM’s ongoing story. 
  
Members commented that consideration needs to be given to those areas in GM 
with limited and no internet coverage.  Furthermore, continued investment in digital 
skills for schools was vital for the successful growth of the sector. 
 
The GM Mayor also added that a detailed proposal of UCAS style of apprenticeships 
will be submitted to a future meeting of the GMCA. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the GM Digital Strategy, measures and Strategic Action Plan, as included 

within Section 8 of the Strategy, be agreed. 
 
2. That detailed proposals for a UCAS style system for apprenticeships be 

submitted to a future meeting of the GMCA. 
 
GMCA 47/18 GMCA REVENUE UPDATE 2017/18 
 
The Mayor of GM introduced a report which informed members of the 2017/18 
forecast revenue outturn position as at the end of January 2018.  It detailed a 
projected position for the year end, which included a modest underspend from the 
mayoral election. 
 
He also emphasised it was a transitional year for the GMCA and will seek to provide 
as much transparency as possible. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the Economic Development and Regeneration budget adjustments as 

detailed in section 2 be noted. 
 
2. That the use of Business Rates Top-up Grant to be transferred to Reserves to 

fund Local Growth Fund revenue commitments in 2018/19 and later years and 
the consequent  switch in LGF capital grant to fund elements of the overall 
transport capital programme be approved. 

 
3. That the Economic Development and Regeneration revenue outturn position for 

2017/18 which shows an underspend of £0.663m against budget, after transfers 
to earmarked reserves as detailed in section 2, be noted. 

Page 79



10 

 

 
4. That the transport revenue outturn position for 2017/18, which was in line with 

budget after transfers to earmarked reserves as detailed in section 3, be noted. 
 
5. That the Transport for Greater Manchester outturn position for 2017/18, which 

was in line with budget, be noted. 
 
GMCA 48/18 INTERIM NOMINATIONS FOR GREATER MANCHESTER EUROPEAN 

STRUCTURAL INVESTMENT FUNDS/SUSTAINABLE URBAN 
DEVELOPMENT SUB COMMITTEE 

 
The GM Mayor GM introduced a report seeking agreement from the GMCA in 
relation to the proposed interim appointments to the GM ESIF / SUD sub committees 
until June 2018. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That it be agreed that the existing GMCA nominees, Councillors Alex Ganotis, 

Jean Stretton and Sue Murphy, to the GM European Structural Investment 
Funds/Sustainable Urban Development Sub Committee remain unchanged. 

 
2. That it be agreed that the nomination relating to the GMCA Investment Portfolio 

Lead be held vacant until the formal GMCA nomination process takes place at 
the AGM in June 2018. 

 
3. That the appointment of Councillor Sue Murphy, the substitute GMCA Portfolio 

Lead for Business and Economy, as the Interim Chair of the GM ESIF / SUD sub 
Committee until the GMCA AGM in June be agreed. 

 
GMCA 49/18 GREATER MANCHESTER SKILLS CAPITAL 2017 – 2020 PROGRAMME 
 
Councillor Sean Anstee, Portfolio Leader for Skills, Employment and Apprenticeships, 
introduced a report providing members with an update on the outcomes of the 
appraisal of the Stockport Campus Skills Capital Project and sought approval to 
proceed with a conditional offer.  
 
Members commented that this was a very positive outcome from the Area Based 
Review, and that a merger between Trafford and Stockport colleges would be a great 
development for the further and higher education sector. 
 
Thanks were given to those involved in the work on this application to date, and its 
significance in relation to the wider skills agenda. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That thanks and appreciation to Gemma Marsh, Councillor Sean Anstee and 

Theresa Grant be recorded for the work undertaken to date. 

Page 80



11 

 

 
2. That it be agreed that the £16m funding application for Stockport Campus Skills 

Capital Project which forms part of a wider Stockport and Trafford College 
merger be conditionally approved and progressed to due diligence. 

 
3. That authority be delegated to the GMCA Treasurer and GMCA Monitoring 

Officer to review the due diligence information and, subject to their satisfactory 
review and agreement to the due diligence information and the overall detailed 
commercial terms of the transactions, to sign off any outstanding conditions, 
issue final approvals and complete any necessary related documentation in 
respect of the above grant, in discussion with the Portfolio Lead (Councillor Sean 
Anstee) and Chief Executive for Skills, Work and Apprenticeships (Theresa 
Grant). 

 
GMCA 50/18 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That, under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the press and 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on business on the 
grounds that this involves the likely disclosure of exempt information, as set out in 
paragraph 3, Part 1, Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 and that the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information. 
 
GMCA 51/18 UPDATE ON GM SKILLS CAPITAL 2017 – 2020 PROGRAMME 
 
CLERK’S NOTE: This item was considered in support of the Part A GM Skills Capital 
2017-2020 Programme (minute 49/18 refers). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



12 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 82



 

  
  

 

4B 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY, HELD ON 
TUESDAY 20 FEBRUARY 2018, AT THE TRAFFORD TOWN HALL 

 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Manchester     Councillor Richard Leese (Chair) 
Greater Manchester Mayor  Andy Burnham  
Deputy Mayor    Beverley Hughes 
(Police and Crime) 
Bolton       Councillor Linda Thomas 
Bury     Councillor Rishi Shori 
Oldham     Councillor Jean Stretton 
Rochdale     Councillor Allen Brett 
Salford     Councillor John Merry 
Stockport     Councillor Alex Ganotis 
Tameside     Councillor Brenda Warrington 
Trafford     Councillor Sean Anstee 
Wigan      Councillor Peter Smith 
 
OTHER MEMBERS IN ATTENDENCE: 
 
Fire Committee, Chair   Councillor David Acton 
GMWDA, Chair    Councillor Nigel Murphy 
TfGMC     Councillor Guy Harkin 
Bolton     Councillor Anne-Marie Watters 
Bury       Councillor Jane Black 
Manchester     Councillor Angeliki Stogia 
Stockport     Councillor Wendy Wild 
Trafford     Councillor Dylan Butt 
Trafford     Councillor Laura Evans 
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDENCE: 
 
GMCA Chief Executive  Eamonn Boylan 
GMCA – Deputy Chief Executive Andrew Lightfoot 
GMCA – Monitoring Officer  Liz Treacy 
GMCA – Treasurer   Richard Paver 
Office of the GM Mayor  Kevin Lee 
Bolton      Tony Oakman 
Bury      Pat Jones-Greenhalgh 
Manchester     Joanne Roney 
Oldham     Ray Ward  

Page 83



 

2 
 

Rochdale    Neil Thornton 
Salford     Ben Dolan 
Stockport     Michael Cullen 
Tameside     Steven Pleasant 
Trafford     Theresa Grant 
GMCA      Sylvia Welsh  
GMCA     Emma Stonier 
    

APOLOGIES:  

 
Bury       Councillor Andrea Simpson 
Tameside     Councillor Lynn Travis 
Wigan       Councillor Jennifer Bullen 
Oldham    Carolyn Wilkins 
Rochdale     Steve Rumbelow 
Salford     Jim Taylor 
Stockport     Pam Smith  
Wigan      Donna Hall  
 
 
GMCA/27/18  CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
Councillor Richard Leese explained that he was Chairing the meeting, as the Vice Chair of the GMCA, given 
the GMCA was considering the revised budget proposal from the Mayor.  
 
GMCA/28/18  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
  
There were no declarations of interest made by any member of the GMCA in relation to items on the agenda. 
 

GMCA/29/18  MEMBERSHIP OF THE GMCA 
 
RESOLVED/- 
  
To note the appointment of the following members and substitute members to the GMCA: 
 

District Member Substitute 

Bolton Linda Thomas Ibrahim Adia 

Rochdale Allen Brett Sara Rowbotham 

Tameside Brenda Warrington John Taylor (current 
Substitute) 

 
GMCA/30/18  MINUTES OF GMCA AUDIT COMMITTEE HELD ON 19 JANUARY 2018  

 
RESOLVED/- 
 

Page 84



 

3 
 

That the minutes of the GMCA Audit Committee meeting held on 19 January 2018 be noted, 
specifically: 

 
18/07 GMCA TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT BORROWING LIMITS AND 
ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2018/19 

 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the Committee recommend that the GMCA approve the proposed Treasury 

Management Strategy Statement to apply from the 1st April 2018, in particular: 
 
• The Treasury Indicators listed in Appendix B of this report. 
• The MRP Strategy outlined in Appendix C. 
• The Treasury Management Policy Statement at Appendix D.  
• The Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation at Appendix E. 
• The Borrowing Requirements listed in Section 5.  
• The Borrowing Strategy outlined in Section 8. 
• The Annual Investment Strategy detailed in Section 9. 

 
2. To note that the indicators currently exclude the Waste Authority, these will be updated 

following the transfer. 
 
GMCA/31/18 GMCA TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2018/19 AND CAPITAL 

PROGRAMME 2017/18 – 2020/21  
 
Richard Paver, GMCA Treasurer, introduced an interim report setting out the proposed Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement, Borrowing Limits and Prudential Indicators for 2018/19 to 
2020/21 for the GMCA, excluding the Greater Manchester Waste Authority which will transfer on 
the 1st April 2018 and Housing Infrastructure Fund Loan that might be novated from Manchester 
City Council.  

An updated strategy will be prepared for consideration by the Audit Committee in April and for 
GMCA at an appropriate meeting.  

RESOLVED/- 

That the proposed Treasury Management Strategy Statement to apply from the 1st April 2018 be 
approved, in particular: 

 The Treasury Indicators listed in Appendix B of this report. 

 The MRP Strategy outlined in Appendix C. 

 The Treasury Management Policy Statement at Appendix D.  

 The Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation at Appendix E. 

 The Borrowing Requirements listed in Section 5.  

 The Borrowing Strategy outlined in Section 8. 

Page 85



 

4 
 

 The Annual Investment Strategy detailed in Section 9. 

 Note the strategy was recommended for approval by GMCA Audit Committee on 18 
January 2018 

 Note the PCC capital programme and approve the borrowing requirement included 
in the overall Treasury programme  

 

GMCA/32/18  GMCA MAYORAL GENERAL BUDGET 2018/19  
 
The Mayor introduced a report setting out his revised proposals for the Mayoral General Budget 
(including Fire and Rescue) and seeking approval for the Mayoral General Precept for 2018/19.   
 
He thanked colleagues for their help in progressing through the budget exercise recognising that 
times were tough for people across GM, who were facing real hardship, with Council Tax payers 
facing the burden of the lack of funding for policing and social care.  Notwithstanding that, the public 
were also calling for more progress on tackling congestion, improving buses and public transport, 
protection for greenbelt, improving housing supply and dealing with homelessness.  Work has been 
focused on striking a balance and he thanked Leaders for their support and in particular the GMCA 
Treasurer for the outstanding work and support provided.  He also recognised the preparatory work 
undertaken by Councillor Kieran Quinn for consideration of this year’s budget as the portfolio lead 
for Finance & Investment. 
 
The report to be considered was an update following the report considered in January and sought 
to strike a balance in recognising the pressures on the public and to deal with the priority issues 
facing GM.  Since the last meeting final budget figures have been received and further work has 
been undertaken to look at further reductions and flexibility resulting in an updated proposition 
based on £8 for a Band D property, which would be a charge of £6.30 or just under per household 
on average Band B property.  This was in addition to the contribution of £59.95 Band D as a charge 
for Fire and Rescue Service.   
 
The Mayor reminded the meeting that GM had the strongest Devolution Deal in the Country 
providing opportunities to do more. 
 
The Chair of the meeting reminded the meeting that the report recommended the setting of the 
Revenue Budget for 2018/19 as required under Section 42A of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992 (updated in the Localism Act 2011) and the precepts and relevant levels of Council Tax required 
under sections 40, 42B and 47 of the Act. 
 
He also advised that a named vote was required to approve the revised proposals for the Mayoral 
General Budget.  Members voted as follow: 
 

 GMCA Member 
 

 

Bolton Cllr Linda Thomas 
 

Agreed 

Page 86



 

5 
 

Bury Cllr Rishi Shori 
 

Agreed 

Manchester Cllr Richard Leese 
 

Agreed 

Oldham Cllr Jean Stretton 
 

Agreed 

Rochdale Cllr Allen Brett 
 

Agreed 

Salford Mayor Paul Dennett 
 

Agreed 

Stockport Cllr Alex Ganotis 
 

Agreed 

Tameside Cllr Brenda 
Warrington 
 

Agreed 

Trafford Cllr Sean Anstee 
 

Agreed 

Wigan Cllr Peter Smith 
 

Agreed 

 
 

RESOLVED/- 
 
To approve the Mayor’s revised General budget and precept (£67.95 at Band D) for 2018/19 
set out in Appendices A and B together with the calculation of the precepts and Council Tax 
rates set out in Appendices A to E.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 87



 

6 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 88


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Council mins 28-2-18

	7a The Leader of the Council and the Cabinet Member for Corporate and Resources
	7b The Cabinet Member for Housing and Environment
	7c The Cabinet Member for Regeneration
	7d The Cabinet Member for Business, Skills and Employment
	7e The Cabinet Member for Children's Services
	7f The Cabinet Member for Adult Care
	7g The Cabinet Member for Planning and Development
	7h The Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods, Community and Culture
	7i The Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing
	7j The Chair of Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	7k The Chair of Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	7l The Chair of Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	8a Report of the Representative to the Greater Manchester Waste Disposal Authority
	8b Report of a Representative to Transport for Greater Manchester
	9 Greater Manchester Combined Authority
	4_GMCA_mins_23_February_2018
	4B_Minutes_20_February_2018


